Tulare Public Cemetery District ’\t“‘ﬁ“‘%

This is an Endowment Care Interment

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING Cemeteny
AG E N DA Committee Members

Stephen Presant
Michele Lima

Tulare Public Cemetery — Conference Room Tuesday, February 18, 2025
900 E. Kern Avenue - Tulare, CA 5:30 p.m. — Audit Committee Meeting

Public Information about Meetings:

Documents related to items on the agenda are accessible on District’s website at www.tularecemetery.net and available for
viewing in a single binder at the entrance of the conference room.

Public Comments — The public may comment on any item of public interest within the jurisdiction of the Tulare Public Cemetery
Audit Committee, that is not already on the agenda as those matters will be discussed as set forth in the agenda. In the interest of
time and equal opportunity, speakers are requested to observe a 3-minute maximum time limit (subject to change at the Chair’s
direction). In accordance with the Brown Act, if a member of the public addresses an item not on the posted agenda, no response,
or action on the item may occur during the meeting.

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLL CALL
3. RECOGNITION OF VISITORS

4. PUBLIC COMMENT

5. OPEN SESSION - AUDIT REPORTS, ITEMS OF INTEREST & GENERAL BUSINESS
(All items are subject to discussion and possible action by the Committee Members.)

5.1- Approve minutes of January 15, 2025

5.2- Review and recommend approval of the December 2024 financials

5.3- Review financials to date with annual budget and any recommended changes
5.4- Review of draft annual audit 2023/2024

5.5- District Manager's Report

6. ADJOURNMENT

OPEN SESSION AGENDA ITEMS
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC

ALL WRITINGS, MATERIALS AND INFORMATION PROVIDED TO THE BOARD FOR THEIR CONSIDERATION RELATING TO
ANY OPEN SESSION AGENDA ITEMS OF THE MEETING ARE AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL
BUSINESS HOURS MONDAY - FRIDAY 8:00 AM - 4:00 PM AT THE CEMETERY DISTRICT OFFICE LOCATED AT 900 E.
KERN AVE. - TULARE, CA 93274

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, IF YOU SHOULD NEED
SPECIAL ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, PLEASE CONTACT THE
BOARD OFFICE
AT (559) 686-5544 FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS PRIOR TO THIS MEETING.




Tulare Public Cemetery District
Audit Committee Meeting Minutes
January 20, 2025

CALL TO ORDER:

The Tulare Public Cemetery Audit Commitiee meeting on January 20, 2025, was called to order at
5:34 pm at 900 E Kern Ave, Tulare, California by Committee Chair Steve Presant and Committee
Member Michele Lima. District Manager Clara Bernardo was in attendance.

RECOGNITION OF VISITORS: There were no visitors
PUBLIC COMMENT: There were no comments
OPEN SESSION:

5.1 — Lima moved and Presant seconded recommended approval of the minutes of November 26,
2024. Vote (2-0)

5.2 —~ Reviewed and recommended approval of November 2024 financials- Vote (2-0).
5.3 — Reviewed Petty Cash amount totaling $500.00

5.4 — Review PVQ Vouchers 15063-15068, 15077-15082 and all copied invoices were initialed and
matched Disbursement Funds Cover Sheet.

5.5 — The District Manager Reported:

On the ATT phone costs at North Cemetery and wondered if there should be a consideration
of cell phones instead.

Next meeting to review expense to annual budget at the six-month mark.

ADJOURNMENT:
Presant adjourned the meeting at 6:15 pm.

Respectfully Submitted,

Audit Committee Member

Page 1]1



9:49 PM Tulare Public Cemetery District

02117125 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of Becember 31, 2024

ASSETS
Gurrent Assels
Checking/Savings

00 - Clearing Acct.

10100 - Petty Cash

10150 : Bank of The Slerra - CHK ACCT

10500 - Cash In Treasury (772)

10600 - Endowment - Reserved (773)
1620 - Edowment Care 1620
10600 - Endowment - Reserved (773} - Other

Total 10600 - Endowmnent - Reserved (773)

10700 - Cash in Expansion Account (807}
10900 - Endowment - Unreserved (817)
10950 - Pre-Need Payment Plan {B86)

Total Checking/Savings

Accounts Receivable
11001 - Accounts Recelvable - PVQ (772)
11010 - Receivable - Pre-Need Pmt Plan
11020 - Other Accounts Receivable

Total Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets
11300 - Prepaid Expense
11320 * Prepaid Workers Compensation
11330 - Prepald Liability Insurance
14340 - Prepaid Property lnsurance

Total 11390 - Prepaid Expense

12001 - Undeposited Funds
12101 - Inventory Asset

Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabllities
Accounts Payable
20000 - Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payable

Dec 31, 24

8,830.35
500.00
5,141.32
318,722.45

316,017.92
1,793,994.28

2,110,012.20

224,431.01
207,495.68
224 967.53

3,189,900.54

70,000.00
132,538.67
B26.44

203,365.11

23,017.75
31,227.60
3,281.85

57,627.20

6,289.88
13,124.46

76,941.54

3,470,207.19

3,470,207.19

72,556.87

72,558.87

Page 1




9:49 PM Tulare Public Cemetery District

02117125 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2024
Dec 31,24
Other Current Liabilities
25600 - PTO Accruals 4 .564.53
24000 - Payroll Liabilities 29.16
25500 - Sales Tax Payable 1,899.67
Total Other Current Liabilities 6,593.36
Total Current Liabilities 79,150.23
Total Liabilitles 79,150.23
Equity
30000 - Fund Balance 2,799,148.20
31100 - Retain Earnings 437,394.81
Net Income 154,513.85
Total Equity 3,391,056.96
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 3,470,207.19

Page 2




| abeg

00%'BEE"} 05Z'699 £98'C65 205 L ¥ZzZ'20Z Woid sS04
000°LEL 005'69 819'c9 L1601 oEo'e $909 I80),
000t 00g £5 £8 oz so||tdng aoiales snooue|easIW - GLBS
0 0 0 0 0 $1500 NN 40} WIBIGWE - BOGS
0 0 0 0 0 £1500 BSeA - 5065
00002 000'se $99'cE £e8's yog'y £180D }INEA - 1069
000'09 000'0¢ 009'62 000's 000'y souaISpeal 10} ased o104IU0D - 0088
PIOG £P0OS) jO J502)
00S'60b') 052'veL 19€'259 asv'zel ¥88'012 elCI| [E10L
005'z 062l 0 802 0 SNUBASY 9110 - SEBY
0 0 0 0 0 UORNIASoY - bERS
000'0L 000's Z60'y 5] 8¢ enueAsy “Js|W - 5089
00l 0s S0JES BSBA - 1LbS
000'051 000'SL g19'gL 005'2) 120'ZL $012G YNEA - 09
00009 000'0€ 008'62 000's Doo'y Sajeg oseg 8)a1oL0) - (SPS
000068 000'G¥ 116'v0Y 191'%1 ove'ss SOIIAIOS JuaLIND Joj seBaeyn - 00b9 (BI04
000'068 000'GHY o 291"y 0 SBUI0 - S83¢A185 JUBLING Jo) soBleyD . ooys
08z 0 sebimyaeg uo ppv - L1'00¥S
00¥'9 0 004 03)aiag Aepameg - O 0045
509 6 5804 JORIIOD UB|d WBwAed - 900¥S
006 ) 800 JYSURIL « L'00PS
S0L'ZL L8 994 19E351 JO WO - 9005
g6v'L2 10L's UONEBIRISY] 3NRA - 50045
005'85 ool's uoRENSIUNLPY . 00+9
0gL'0aL 009'22 8s0|9 pue uedo - £'00¥S
i N1 1#00'2 BY2IN - Z'00¥S
§19'sZ1 000'€1 oARIS) . 1'00NS
S02JAIBS JuBLIND 40} umm._u:O = 0Q¥FS
000'004 000'05 0 gee'e 0 SpUN WoJy aajsued) - L'LOSY
000'Z 005t oer'e £es 0 Z.L4 - owodu| 155 - Loak
000052 000'9ZL gov'LEL ££8'02 00F'2€1 soxeL Auncy - gu0Y (e30L
£00'052 000'sZ} 0 £E5'02 0 FOUIQ - SOy Klunog « goor
oot'L8) 0oV LEL paINSes Waung - J00r
sexu] fjunoed - 000y
0 0 0 4] 0 a1qeeay yseo BuluuiBog |20y . 6868
auosu|
osuadxzoweou) Aeupio
-png |enuuy  196png gua ¥Z 9aq - Inp 1afpng ¥z 280
Y20z Jaquaadaq s15eg [enuaay
aoueuLIolad J9bpng 507 '8 1JOoid SZILMZO
jousiq Alajawa aland aseng Wd 156




z ebeyg

00Z'L 009 £01'} 001 0 esuedxg juswesinquiBy obiee|iy - g20L
0 0 0 0 0 $6U0ISPEOH 10} 6sEY S1049U0D - LLOL
852'29 6Z1'1E 6vL'LZ 8816 0 ecueinsu| . QL0 |E10),
86228 L TANTS 0 88l's 0 J9130 - souRINSUj - 0L0L
£29 0 uognque) Aiae)T a4 - 9040L
8Ll 0 SIURINSU| PUOG/OWHD - 9010.
[ "4 0 edueansu| juawdinbg ol - #0402
8 0 a3uRINSU] OIY - £040L
PYe'Z 0 soueinsu] Ausdold - Z0164
656°1E 0 S3URINSU| AYNGRIT] [BISUBL) - JOLOL
ajuBInsuj - oL0s
00g 05z Ae] Zr o socldng ployasnoH - 6002
005 05z 0 4 0 seay AloalagAuB e - o0
0 0 0 i D |L0UJT pUR SHNEA - 00/
00S'E} 052'S 1819 856 £E0°t SUOREJURWWONAL - SO0 IEIOL
oos'tl os2'e 188'Z 856 Zite JOLIQ - SUOREIIUNWWOINS] - 002
£ e 0IqeL - £5002
£€ob'e 808 S3UIT BUOYd - 29002
AL 1} 18welu] « L5004
suoedUNWIWOd8|oL - §00.
000'D 000t 0oLz 005 zozZ 89| |ddng [Ruosiag pue Bunpo)n - v00L 8oL
noa's 000's g 006 0 Jaupp - sayddng [ruosiag pue BUIROES - ¥00L
l2g 121 sojddns piv 1sild - £¥00L
662 It dinb3 eARI)0Id RUOSIod - Bdd - ZHD0L
sal|ddng feuosiad pue Bulyio)s - vo0.
008's 0062 0 toy 0 $394 upwpy xeL, funog - £ooL
08¢'1E8 £68'51¥ ShP 10V ZBZ'69 gEL'BY sygeueq sakojdug pue joiied . goos 12101
0 0 0 0 0 0o - 8109
000'S 1 0062 Ze8'LL 05Z't 0.8's moked penasy Old - 2108
009'€ 008'L 518 a0g Gt “suj Juawkordwaun - 9109
9c0'6¢ 215'6L 810'9) £52'c 0 suj vopesuaduoy IeNOM « 5109
00S'¥i 052'22 s08'el a0L'e 661'¢C a1eaipoy pur AUNJIS [B190S - 2108
000'zy 000’12 ZEG'G) os'e BOE'Z- UOTHO gS-JUdWBIReY - L109
05L'0 GLE'E o0’z £96 00¢ §994 5101984|0 - 5008
005'0F 05Z'Ce £OL'6L GIE'E GEP'D disH eaxg - 5009
000'86 000'6y Ziv'oe 01'8 £g- SIYoUsg oUBINSU| YIESH - $ODY
Qoo'zl 0009 L8v'9 000't iZ5'L BWIRIBAQ - 2000
000°0ES 000'692 669'022 291'pp 6ZL'EE lioskeg senBay - 100y
sijjousg sdkojdwy pue |joiked . 0003
esuadxy
“png (enuuy  J9Bpng aLA ¥z o8q - bp yobpng ¥z 29
¥Z07 Jaquiasaq siseq [enisay
asuewl0iad uﬂm_u_._m $507 9 10l1d SZ/LLIEO

1LsIg Aejewad dlqnd edeny Wd 156




¢ ofieg

582 &b $204 yueg - 0404
9522 gz1L 1892 eal 80't ENCIURHAISIN - 6E0L 1301
a52'e 8zL't 099 231 #08 120 - SO AISIN - BLOL
1z8't vi5'L SIU0AZ 281 - 1-BE0Z
SNOOUR||828| « BE0L
0 X ] 62 0 0 Bupayen - 2602
000'SY 005'2E Ze6'81 08L'¢ 6IE'T esuedxy pue sejjddng aati0 - S£0L RICL
000's¥ 00§'2Z yEa'e osL'e £l eyl - esuadxg pue segddng eoo - 9202
0ol'e 0sg'L BYSqOA /suresBold e1emios - 00099
¥Z8 0 asuadxg pue eljeday Jandwioy - 000
620'C FA:TA sajddng asy0 - 000Ze
AN ! £02 s3|)ddng Wwoo.ealq / 938M - LO0LD
[ d AR esee uswdminbaadog . 0001y
esuadxz pue se|ddng 8310 . 9802
000'081 0o0'08 S09°tH gee'st SE€'04 sJjeday pue asueusjuiel - 004 (B0l
000'08¢ 000'08 €2E°00 £EE'C) 209 JoIQ - sijedey pue esusuaURK - §E0L
gL't e d! [onuoD 18ad « LOP0L
Fiz 0 woy Buipyng - "ujel g seday - 00r0L
265°2 08l oagy aseab siomoy- Bujdeaspue . jLep2
201 0 S2UBUGUIEY 10) S{O0L SPUNOIS . OLEDL
‘8e5'02 0 soddngsieday Ny Jopjupds - 60502
9612 615 Spunoug) 10; Aeidg [ORUOD PSS « BOCOL
6¥'L 261 YUON spising-ule ¢ Jjedey - 20802
00p's 0or's uoH/sauoIspea - "uleN ¢ 1jedoy . 5oL
R+ e esuepdwoy g ssjiddng Mageg - LogoL
052 0 NYAY optaIng - -ule % Jedey . 00co2
418 0 UBLQMUIRN PUNOID YHON - SJ0OL - §120L
Y02 Gig ey pue ( HLYOoN sseday asusd . £1207
ZE6'ElL o ucpeso] NuIX-Ulel g sledey - 1120
0.6 0 83UBUSIUIERY PUNOIS NYIN- S100L - 01204
80} 0 Aiddngsireday HIMON sopuUdS - 60202
e #5¢ juswdinb3 10§ HLKON I18581Q - 20204
162 bLL wewdinh3 yuoN- "ujel ¢ areday - pozos
iob 0 dinb3 [any o - pepesjun - 0202
¥61'T Z5¢ dinb3 104 |en4 NI - PapR3JUN - POZ0L
¥OL'T 0 juawdinb3 1o} NYEY 1951Q + $0Z0L
£or'L 608 ajaiag Joj soyjddng g Juawdinby . 10z0L
£0v's £61 wawdmbg N3N - “wiew B Jiedoy - 00Z02
sieday pue eoUEULUIEY - 0C0L
*png [enuay  196png dLA +Z 984 - [np 10Bpng ¥z 090
$20Z Jaquesaq siseg [eniody
ooueuLIOLIB] ummuzm $S07 @ Jjoid SZILViE0
JausIg Aejswan sngnd sdeny Wd 15'8




¥ ebey

00008 00062 6%’} 91y 0 juauwsdinby - 0ogg 0y
00005 0o'sz = 0 o0y ) a0 - uawdinb3g - 0ogg
65 0 uswdinb3 NH3W Spunoss . Loes
¥i6 0 juswd|nbg HLIMON SpUncis - Zogs
weuimbs - gogn
0 0 6P 0 0 sjuowweaciduy pue Buipling - 0018
o ] 0 0 0 SBYOIN + Z008
Qo0'0z 00001 82281 299'L 0 eseyndey searis . 1008
000'e 000'y 0 299 0 sexel - 5ZPL
001 05 ] 8 0 esuadxg e1o1yen - 060L
000'59 006'Z¢ 99"y L' TeT'T SepIn - 180L 1eI0L
000°'59 006'Z¢E 0 LIS 0 1010 - SAIMAN - 1BOL
vil'G 80¥ w19y jesodsiq AISeM - 00062
Y's LL0'} YHON [esodsiq 81SeAn - LO06LL
696'61 185 JeMog U3 - GOELL
e 291 $B9) |80 05 » 00TLL
L2 0 HIHON 21YLD313 39S - WObLL
og't 0 ORLOTTA NYIM 325 » 00bLL
SaPIDN - 1802
000'y noo'z el £EE 0 laaeil pue uopeHodsuel) - p2os
000's 005 vzL'e Iy 052 uoneanpg ; Bupuesy - £204
000'S 004'2 Lv2'S Li¥ ozE'Y saapoN [eBa7y pue suopesiqng - 650. [E10L
000'S 00S'Z 0 v 0 JeIpo - SeooN (267 pus sucpeagnd - 650/
¥2's 0Ze'y sang) diysiaquien - 1650
sa0feN [eBa pue suopesliand - 6504
000°51 0052 2rLe 0s2'l yec'e Aunes - 5y0L 0L
000's1 0082 2L 05zt 926'2 B0 - HUNKAS - GY0L
gov'y 566 HIMON ALRMNOZAS - B0V
626 £58'F a%)Aleg URlY - L5102
Aj)n03as . G0L
000'0F 00002 #96'v2 gee'e 812'L £394 [RUOIESOJOI - £¥DL IB10L
000°0¥ 000'02 0 £ee'e 0 JalQ - 8394 [UUOISENOIH - EFDL
A ArA! gi8't jefiaT - 0ot
2% 0 og Snug/puncibyoeg - Juswiordus - 10Zg9
756'6 6be'L Bugunoaoy . oni83
apre'e gy $03, UpUPY QUNoY - 00SEY
8684 JBUO|SSROI - £FOL
*png jenuuy  yeBpng qia ¥z 300 - Inf wipng ¥Z 980
$Z0Z Joquaag s|seg [en1I0y
9JUBULIOLIOH ammﬂ_._m §$6507 @ J1jO0ldd STILIRO
wusig Adsjewe) aiqnd aJeiny Wd 159:6




g eBeyq

o0v'viv 00zZ'1£2 15451 £ea'ee #v2's9l 2WoIU| 18N
oor'viv 002282 90L'0b2 ££5'6E GeE'PS BWO| J8O 10N
oob'vLy 00z'lc2 902'0v2 €eg'se GRE'YG AWON| JAQ [ejoL
0009 oog'e 0 00% 0 awodu) 19RO - 0066 [MOL
oo0'9 o00'e o] 00§ 0 18319 D - LOGB
ewoduy G - 0066
000'0L2 000601 vZO'DLL 005'21 Lb9'0} 988 - POON 8d - 06 |10
000'002 000'001 0 £99'aL 0 48410 - 688 - PeaN aid - 0016
000'01 00o0's :]1: 54 ££8 0 988 - GWOodY| 1SeleN] - LOVE
S0Z'1 ] S19RNU0N UBld WewAe . 430045
v.o'9 98/ WOWMOpUZ DOANAIY - L 60PS
96E'cE 994'L SO[eS UNVA POENAId - 49009
£6L'9 682 ucfie|eisuy ynea - 450015
oob's 009 BORERSIUIPY « 46015
000'zZY 006'S as0|D pue uedQ « de00vS
6092 0 8YIIN - 420019
och'ee 000'L BARIG) poaN-ald - d1'00VS
988 - POON Bid - 0OFE
000'0L 000's $89'2e ££8 129'se Lig - SPUNA paAtesedun - 006 IBI0L
000'olL 000's 589'27 £ee izZg'sz 118 - 8wodu] 1s8381u] - LOEE
418 - SpuUnd paaIBsaluf) - 00£6
ooy'ee 00L'¥1 £2¢'01 osr'e B.5'8 108 - uo|suedx3 eunnd 40§ pund - 0026 (EI0L
0 ] 0 0 a {208) WPy sadjAIeS JUBLIND - $OZE
o' o0L'y SE8'} £8L Q 208 - sWoU| Jsesalu] - £0Z6
poo'oe 000'0} 2:5'8 199°) 8.5'8 408 - SU0ISSadU0) pue JUY - LOZ6
108 - uosuedxs ainin. Jo) pung . g0zZ6
000'812 005'601 ¥Z5'z6 psz'er Sve's €14 -juawmopuy - 0oL6 IEI0L
00068 005'th lev'gl LivL o €LL WWILIMOPUT - 8LI0IU[ I88I63U] « 2016
000°0E} 000'6o £60'vL geg'ol ov5's AJBS JUBLND- GNUOADY JUBWUMODUS - LOLE
€14 - juawmopuy - 0OL6
|lo3u) JOII0
asuadxz/sWosu| IR0
0 0 Z61'og- o 658'G1L Swody] Aempag 3aN
00%'8€E" L 062699 S50'089 ZHa'ELL SoR'08 asusdxy |e1ol
0 0 o o (1) sepustiupuoy Joj uogepdosddy - zey2
pagjenuay  jeBpng QLA vz 9eg-Inp 1wBpng vz 38g
$Z0T dequiaseq s|seq |[eniooy
aoueuwrLionad jobpng sso @ Jjoid SZILLZO

}a181Q Aejallan alqngd alejny Wd 15:6




9:27 PM
02/17125

Tulare Public Cemetery District

Reconciliation Summary
10150 - Bank of The Sierra - CHK ACCT, Period Ending 12/31/2024

Beginning Balance

Cleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 57 items
Deposits and Credits - 22 items
Total Clearad Transactions
Cleared Balance

Uncleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 44 items
Total Uncleared Transactions
Register Balance as of 12/31/2024

Dec 31, 24
A
25,179.18

-147,277.77
161,015.33
13,737.56

38,916.74

-33,775.42
-33,775.42
5,141.32

*

Page 1 of 1




53 P
2728

Beginning Ealance
Cleared Transactiona
Checks and Payments - 57 items

Total Checks and Paymants
Deposits and Credits - 22 ltems

Tulare Public Cemotery District
Reconciliation Detall

10160 - Bank of The Sierra - CHK ACCT, Period Ending 12/31/2024

Type Date Num Name Cir Amount Balance
25,179.18
BIll Prat-Chaek  10/15/2024 4653  Scott & Dorothy Willlams 4 -800.00 -800.00
Bl Pmi-Check  $4/08/2024 4668  CAL Turf Equipment & Supply Inc. N -1,03824 183824
Bill Pmt-Chack  11/08/2024 4577  Jensen & Pilagard \t 23429 -2,07253
Bill Pt -Check  11/08/2024 4672  Cintas Fisst Ald Safsty ¥ €351  -2,136.04
Bl Pmt-Check  11/26/2024 4703  Christy Vault Go, Inc. ¥ 763800 -9.774.04
Bill Pmt-Check 11/26/2024 4708  Haalth Banafits Unit N 540205 -15,176.00
Bl Pmt-Check  11/26/2024 4711 LABORMAX STAFFING ¥ 454982 -19,72591
Bl Pmt-Check  11/26/2024 4722 Tulare Irrigation District ¥ 404700 -2377281
BIl Pmt-Check  11/26/2024 4697  Bamas Memorials ¥ 360000 -27,372.51
Bill Pmt-Check  11/26/2024 4721  TULARE COUNTY ROLL-OFF ¥ -282520 -30,198.11
Bill Pmt-Check  11/28/2024 4705 Elemant Security Salutions, tnc. ¥ -1,850,00 -31.848.11
Bill Prt-Check  11/28/2024 4709 Mome Depot Credit Services N -1,54897 -33,397.08
Bl Prt-Check  T11/26/2024 4706  Ewing Inigation Products Inc. 4 -1,47805 -34,875.13
Bl Pmt-Check 11/26r2024 4719  RIGO'S SIGNS ¥ -628.25 -35401.38
Bl Pmt-Chack  11/26/2024 4712  Leaf ] 458,31 -36,950.89
Bill Pmt-Check 11/26/2024 4716  Pacific Employers o 297,00 -38,157.69
Bill Pmt-Check  11/26/2024 4701 Califomia Busniness Machines ¥ -242.41  -38,400.10
BHIPmt-Check  11/26/2024 4710  Kermy Ruffa Construction ¥ -239.4% -38,630.50
Bl Pmt-Check 11/26/2024 4718 Res Com Pest Controf 4 -200.00 -36,839,58%
BllPmi-Check 11/26/2024 4720  Rocha Oll, Ine, o -166,75 -37,006.34
B Pmi-Chack 11/26/2024 4698  Batlery Fro o -148.15 -37,154.48
Bill Pmt -Check  11/26/2024 470¢  CAL Turf Equipment & Supply Inc. Y -12446 -37,278.94
Bl Pmi-Check 1172612024 4713 Linder Equip CO. o -12433 -37,403.27
Blll Pmt-Check  11/26/2024 4704  Cintas First Ald Safety o -11250  -37,515.77
Bl Pmt-Check  11/26/2024 4695 AT & T Mobllity ¥ -2446 -37,540.23
Bl Pmt-Check  11/26/2024 4702  CARQUEST AUTQ PARTS - CP PHEL -22.26 -37.562.49
Bill Pmt-Check  11/28/2024 4707  Giotta's Alam Tech, INC. 4 -1431 -37,578.80
General Joumal 12/01/2024 CB-35R ¥ 3864537 -78,222.17
Check 12/01/2024 EFT  Paychex of New York LLC ¥ 380372 72589
BIN Pmt-Check 12/02/2024 EFT  $oCalGas ¥ 5096 -79,776.85
Bl Prmi-Check  12/10/2024 4727  Christy Vault Co, knc. Vv 727800 -87.05485
Bilt Pt -Check  12/40/2024 4728 Uline, inc. 4 273242 .89,787.27
Bill Pt -Check 421072024 4728 LABORMAX STAFFING V¥ 220788 -92,185.15
Bill Pt -Check 121072024 4730 United Rentals(North America),Inc ¥ -B77.50 -B3,062.65
Blll Pmt-Check  12/10/2024 4725 AT & T Mobiiity, ¥ 2447 -93087.12
Check 1211272024 10832 W 4 -1,26283 -94,340,75
Check 1211212024 10930 7 i ¥ -461.07 -84,810.82
Check 1211212024 EFT  Paychex of New York LLC ¥ 26400 -95174.82
Check 12312024 EFT  Paychex of New York LLG ¥ -18,91853 -112,091.35
Check 121132024 4733~ ¥ 359304 11568439
" Check 121132024 4735 w 4 15688 11804137
Check 121132024 4734/ ¥ -247.63 -116,250.00
Bill Pmd-Check  12/14/2024 EFT AT AT Intemnet ) -10.00 -116,328.00
Bill Prvt-Check  12/18/2024 EFT AT & T Phone's + -241.89 -116,570.89
Bl Pmt-Check 12/20/2024 EFT  City of Tulars v -1808.32 -118,179.21
Bill Pmi-Check 12/23/2024 4736  Bamnes Memorials ¥ 540000 -124,579.21
Bl Pt -Check 1212422024 EFT AT & T Phona's 4 -258.72 -124,837.83
Bill Pmt-Check  12/25/2024 EFT  Wasta Management/USA Wasts 4 -340.83 -125,178.86
Bl Prt-Check  12/26/2024 EFT  Southem Calfomia Edison ¥ 958,80 -128,13568
Bill Pmt-Check 12/26/2024 EFT  ATAT A55068788463356 ¥ -437.87 -126,573.63
Chack 12R7/2024 EFT  Paycheax of New York LLC 7 C16,119.40 -142,693.03
Check 122712024 4737 N -1871.50 -144,384.53
Check 1212712024 4739> Pa‘ dw, ¥ 133407 -145,899.50
Check 12/2712024 4738 qi 4 £48.32 -146,247.82
Check 12/27/2024 EFT  Palchex of New York LLG ¥ 28495 -148,532.77
Bill Pmt-Check  12/30/2024 EFT  Intult ¥ 700,00 -147,232.77
Bill Pmt-Check 12/31/2024 EFT  Positiva Pay - Bank of Slera ¥ -45.00 147.277.17
4127777 14727717
Check 10/15/2024 4857  VOID o 0.00 0.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/08/2024 4678  VOID v 0.00 000
Chetk 11720/2024 469¢  VOID ¥ 0.00 0.00
Check 112072024 4891 VOB ¥ 0.00 0.00
Chetk 11/2012024 4692 VOID ¥ 060 0.00

Pagaiof3




oo L

9:33PM Tulare Pubiic Cemetery District

0217125 Reconclliation Detail
410150 « Bank of The Slema - GHK ACCT, Parled Ending 12/3172024

Typt Data Num Name Cir  Amount Balance
Check 11/20/2024 4888  VOQID ¥ 0.00 0.00
Check 11/20/2024 4688  VOID ¥ 0.00 006
General Jounal 11/30/2024 CB-35 ¥ 3884537 38,64537
Deposit 12/05/2024 ¥ 1,500,00 4014537
Deposlt 12/05/2024 ¥ 391489 44056026
Deposit 12/068/2024 ¥ BOB31 4486657
Deposit 12/06/2024 ¥ 229644 47,183.01
Deposit 12/06/2024 ¥ 252036 4968337
Deposit 12/106/2024 ¥ 567003 5535340
Daposlt 1210612024 ¥ B,550.81 6180431
Deposit 12/06/2024 ¥ 9,461,168  71,38547
Deposlt 1200612024 ¥ 2589788 97,263.35
Deposit 1211372024 ¥ 206425 99,327.80
Deposit 121132024 ¥ 2,783,684 102,111.24
Deposit 121372024 i 7.280.78 109,392.02
Deposit 1213r2024 ¥ 2812331 13751533
Deposit 1212012024 ¥ 23500.00 161,015.33
Total Deposils and Cradits 164,015.33 161,015.33
Tatal Cleared Transactions 13737568 13,737.56
Cleared Balance 13,737.56 33,816.74
Unclaarad Transactions
Checks and Payments - 44 llems
4 Bl Prt -Check Q5/{7/2024 4444 PLOTBOXINC -1,350.00  -1,350,00
BIN Prt-Check 0529/2024 EFT County of Tulare : 4332 148332
Bill Pmt-Check  00/27/2024 4818  PLOTBOXINC -T78.00 -2,271.32
Bill Pmt-Check 1071172024 4829  Callfomla Bushinass Machines -298.58 -2,668.80
Bl Pmt-Check  $1/08/2624 4667 Battery Pro ~14587  -2,715.87
Bill Pt -Chack  $1/12/2024 4685 Hame Depol Cradit Sarvicas -783,65 -3,480.52
Bill Pmt-Check  11/15/2024 4687 PLOTBOX INC -2,700.00 -6,199.52
BN Pmt-Check  11/1502024 4586 Home Depot Cradit Services -298.86  -5,498.38
Blll Pt -Check  11/26/2024 4717 PLOTBOXING -1,35000 -7,848.39
Bill Pmt-Check  11/26/2024 4594  Andy Hinojosa lll CPA -700.00 -8,543.38
Bill Pmt-Check  11/26/2024 4723  Vallay ndustrial Medical Group 40080 -8,943.98
B Pmt-Check 11/26/2024 4715 Office Depat -389.93 -9,333.941
Bill Pmt -Check  11/26/2024 4639 Boot Bam, Inc. -276.64 961555
Bill Pmt-Check  11/26/2024 4714 Lowe's -B744  -9,702.88
Bill Pmt-Check  12/10/2024 4726  Baker Supplies and Repairs -Bakersfieid -1,67847 -11,381.48
Bl Prit-Chack  12/10/2024 4724 Andy Hinojosa Il CPA +1,50000 -12,88146
Bill Pmt-Chack  12/10/2024 4732 Baker Supplles and Repairs -Bakersfield -1,474.10 -14,355,56
Bill Pint-Check  12/10/2024 4731 Valley Industrial Medical Group 14500 -14,500.58
Bill Pmt-Check 127312024 4741 LABORMAX STAFFING -3,018.55 -17,520.11
BIlt Pt -Check  12/31/2024 4760  TULARE COUNTY ROLL-GFF -2825.20 -20,245.31
Bilt Pt -Check  12/31/2024 4747 Elemernt Security Solutlons, Inc. -2,263.25 -22.608.56
Bill Pmt-Check 1203172024 4758 Rocha Qll, inc, -1,86565 -24474.21
Bill Pmt-Chack  12/31/2024 4754 Linder Equip CO, -1,327.01 -25,801.22
Bl Pt -Chesk 1213172024 4748 Chyisty Vault Co, inc, -1,125.00 -26,928.22
Blli Prt <Chack 1213112024 4781  Kaweah Lit. Inc -§75.97 -27,602.19
Bill Pmt-Check  12/31/2024 4752 LABORMAX STAFFING -65592 -28,268.01
Bl Pmt-Check  12/31/2024 4763  lima, Michele -550.00 -2B,808.01
Bill Pt -Check 123172024 4791 Ramos, Carlos -52500 -29,333,01
Bill Pmt-Cheek 1273172024 4744  CAL Turf Equipment & Supply Inc. -523.58 -29,858.589
Bill Prt-Check  12531/2024 4764 Hittin, Patricia -500,00 -30,358.59
Bl Pt -Check 12/31/2024 4792  Petty Cash 48044 -30,837.03
BIll Prt-Check  12/31/2024 4753  Leaf -453.17 -31,280.20
Bill Pmt-Check 1273112024 4749 Golden State Risk Management Autharity -400.00 -31,850.20
Bilt Pmt -Check  12/131/2024 4742 Actlont Equipment Rentals, Inc, -388,52 -32,088,72
Bill Pmt -Check  12/31/2024 4755 Office Depal -378.86 -32,467.58
Bl Pmt-Chack  12/31/2024 4758  Pacific Employers -297.00 -32,764.58
Bill Pmt -Check 1273172024 4758 Tulare County Counael 27370 -33,038.28
B Pmt-Check  12/31/2024 4740 Cintas Firs! Aid Safety -206.74 -33,245.02
Bill Pmt-Check 12/31/2024 4748  Ewing Imigation Products Inc. -148.85 -33,393.87
Bill Pmt-Check  12/31/2024 4750 Hatre Dapat Credit Services +101.36 -33,485.23
Bil Pmt-Check 1273112024 4767 Ras Com Pest Coatrol -100,00 -33,595.23
Bill Pmt-Check  12/31/2024 4761 Vallay Industrial Medical Group $500 -33,69023
Blll Pmt-Check 1213172024 4743 AT & T Mobility -4832 -33,7389.55
Blil Pmt-Check 121312024 4745 California Busniness Machinas -3587 -33,77542
Tetal Checks and Payments -33,77542 -33,775.42

Page2ofd




9:33 P Tulare Public Camatery District

oanrias Reconcliiation Detail
10180 « Bank of The Slerra - CHK ACCT, Parled Ending 12/31/2024

Type Date Num Name Clr  Amount Balance
Total Unclsared Transactions -33,776.42 -33,775.42
Registar Balance as of 12/31/2024 -20,037.86  5,141.32

Pagedofa




5:10 PM Tulare Public Cemetery District

027izs Reconciliation Summary

10500 - Cash in Treasury {772), Period Ending 12/31/2024
Dec 31, 24

Beginning Balance 271,203,289

Cleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 15 [tems -124,717.98

Deposits and Credits - 20 items 24223712

Total Cleared Transactions $17,519.16

Cleared Balance 388,722.45

Uncleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 1 item -70,000.00

Total Uncleared Transactions -70,000.00

Reglster Balance as of 12/131/2024 318,722.45

Page 1 of 1




§:51 FM
02117125

Beginning Balance
Cleared Transactiona
Checka znd Payments - 15 tems

Total Checks and Payments
Deposits ant Credits - 20 Hems

Total Deposits and Ctediis

Total Clsared Transactions
Cleared Balanca

Uncleared Transactions
Chsecks and Paymenta - 1 itsem

Total Checks and Payments
Total Uncleared Transactions
Roglister Balance as of 12/31/2024

Tulare Public Comatery District

Reconciliation Detail
10500 - Cash in Treasury (772}, Period Ending 1273172024

Typa Date Num Nama Cir Amount Balance
274,203.29

Invoice 1112002024 pvqi5084 TULARE COUNTY PVQ ¥ -75897.88 -25,8497.88
Invoice  11/20/2024 pvqi5087 TULARE COUNTY PVQ \I -8.451.16 -35,359.04
Invoica  11/20/2024 pvq15085 TULARE COUNTY PVQ + -6,55091  -41,900.95
Invoice  11/20/2024 pvq15089 TULARE COUNTY PVQ ¥ -5.670.03 -47.579.98
Invoice  11/20/2024 pvg15050 TULARE COUNTY PVQ ¥ -2520.36  -50,100.34
invoice  11/20/2024 pvq15088 TULARE COUNTY PVQ ¥ -2,206.44 .52,308.78
invoice  11/20/2024 pvq15088 TULARE COUNTY PVQ v -808.31 -53,20308
invoica  11/25/2024 pvq15081 TULARE COUNTY PVQ { -3,91489 -57,117.98
invoice  11/25/2024 pvq15062 TULARE COUNTY PVQ ) -1,50000 -58,617.88
Invoice 12/04/2024 pvg15083 TULARE COUNTY PVQ N -28,129.31 -86,741.28
Invoica  12i0412024 pvq15095 TULARE COUNTY PVQ ) 728078 -94,022,07
Invoice 120472024 pvq15084 TULARE COUNTY PVQ ) 278364 -96,805.71
Invoice  12/04/2024 pvq15096 TULARE COUNTY PVQ ) 208425 -95,860.86
Invoice  12/10/2024 pvq15087 TULARE COUNTY PVQ v -23,500.00 -122,389.96
Check  12ME/2024 Tulare County Auditor-Controller ¥ -2,348.00 -124,717.96
~124,717.96 -124,717.98

Transter 12/02/2024 J 40,00 40.00
Transfer 12/02/2024 ¥ 220000 2224000
Transfer 12/02/2024 ¥ 30,8887  32538.87
Deposit 12/12/2024 Tax Appatticnment ¥ 320 3284218
Deposit 1211272024 Tax Apportionmant + 11258 32754.72
Depostt  12/12/2024 Tax Apportionment 4 32739 3308211
Deposit 1211272024 Tax Appartionment ¥ §67.77 3364088
Deposit  12/12/2024 Tax Appartionment J 5770.07 38.419.85
Deposit 12/12/2024 Tax Apperionment y 18,298.41 5571636
Deposit 1211272024 Tax Apportionment ¥ 101,279.34 15689570
Daposit  12/46/2024 J 37.50 157,033.20
Transfer 12/17/2024 d 800.00 157,633.20
Transfer 1201772024 ¥ 4,112.50 161,745.70
Depesit  1217/2024 Tax Apportionment ¥ 5,169,.00 166,914.70
Deposit 1211772024 Tax Apportionment v 7.872.00 174.787.70
Transfer 12/17/2024 ¥ 23,497.20 198,284.90
Transfer 1241712024 ¥ 33,512.72 231,798.62
Depost  12/18/2024 Tax Apportionment ¥ 1.00 231,799.62
Transfar 12/23/2024 < 7.916.25 239,715.87
Deposit 121312024 Interest ¥ 252125 242.237.12
24223712 242237.12

117.516.16  117.519.16

117,519.16 388,72245

Invoics  12/18£2024 pvq15088 TULARE COUNTY FVQ -70,000.00  -70,000.00
-70,000.00  -70,000.00

-70,000.00 -70,000.00

47,519.16 318,722.45

Page 1 of 1



7:49 PM Tulare Public Cemetery District

0217125 Reconciliation Summary
10600 - Endowment - Reserved (773), Period Ending 12/31/2024
Dec 31,24

Beginning Balance 2,138,128.65

Cleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 1 item -80,627.00

Deposits and Credits - 8 items 32,510.54

Total Cleared Transactions -28,116.46

Cleared Balance 2,110,012.20

Register Balance as of 12/31/2024 2,110,012.20

Page 1 of 1




7:52PM Tulare Public Cemetery District

02/17/25 Reconciliation Detail
10600 - Endowment - Reserved (773}, Perlod Ending 12/31/2024

Type Date Num Name CIr Amount Balance

Beglnning Balance 2,138,128.66
Clearad Transactions
Checks and Payments - 1 item

Transfer 12/23/2024 ¥ -60,627.00 -60,627.00
Total Checks and Payments -60,627.00 -60,627.00
Deposits and Credits - 8 items

Transfer 12/02/2024 J 1,572.00 1,572.00

Transfer 12/02/2024 v 2,979.00 4,551.00

Transfer 12/17/2024 V 393.00 4,944 .00

Transfer 12/17/2024 2 600.00 5,544.00

Transfer 12/17/2024 ¥ 2,701.00 8,245.00

Transfer 12/17/2024 ) 3,937.00 12,182.00

Transfer 12/23/2024 v 1,315.00 13,497.00

Deposit  12/31/2024 Interest ¥  19,013.54 32,510.54
Total Deposits and Credits 32,510.54 32,510.54
Total Cleared Transactions -28,116.46 -28,116.48

Cleared Balance
Register Balance as of 12/31/2024

-28,116.46 2,110,012.20

-28,116.468 2,110,012.20

Page1of 1




7:41 PM Tulare Public Cemetery District

0217125 Reconciliation Detail
10700 - Cash in Expansion Account {807), Period Ending 12/31/2024

. Type Date Num Name Cir Amount Balance
Beginning Balance 215,418.17
Cleared Transactions
Deposits and Credits - 2 items

Deposit 12/16/2024 ¥ 7,077.50 7,077.50

Deposit 12/31/2024 Interest 1,935.34 9,012.84
Total Deposits and Credits 9,012.84 9,012.84
Totat Cleared Transactions 9,012.84 9,012.84

9,012.84 224,431.01

Cleared Balance
Register Balance as of 12/31/2024

9,012.84 224,431.01

Pagse 1 of 1




6:06 PM
02/17i25

Tulare Public Cemetery District

Reconciliation Summary
10700 - Cash in Expansion Account (807), Period Ending 12/31/2024

Dec 31, 24

Beginning Balance
Cleared Transactions
Deposits and Credits - 2 items

215,418.17

9,012.84

Total Cleared Transactions

9,012.84

Cleared Balance

224,431.01

Register Balance as of 12/31/202

224,431.01

Page 1 of 1




7:57 PM Tulare Public Cemetery District

02/17/25 Reconciliation Summary

109800 - Endowment - Unreserved (817), Period Ending 12/31/2024
Dec 31,24

Beginning Balance 234,718.16
Cleared Transactions

Deposits and Credits - 2 items 62,777.52
Total Cleared Transactions 62,777.52
Cleared Balance m

Register Balance as of 12/31/2024  297,495.68

Page 1 of 1




8:00 PM
02/17125

Beginning Balance
Cleared Transactions
Deposits and Credits - 2 items

Total Deposits and Credits

Total Cleared Transactions

Cleared Balance

Register Balance as of 12/31/2024

Tulare Public Cemetery District

Reconciliation Detail
10809 - Endowment - Unreserved (817), Perlod Ending 12/31/2024

Type Date Num Name Cir Amount Balance
234,71816
Transfer 12/23/2024 ¥ 60,627.00 60,627.00
Deposit  12/31/2024 Interest 2,150.52 62,777.52
62,777.52 62,777.52
62,777.52 82,777.52
62,777.52  297,495.68

62,777.52 297,495.68

Page 1 of 1




8:06 PM Tulare Public Cemetery District

02117125 Reconciliation Summary
10950 - Pre-Need Payment Plan (888), Period Ending 12/31/2024
Dec 31,24

Beginning Balance 189,214.21

Cleared Transactions

Deposlits and Cradits - 11 items 25,753.32

Total Cleared Transactions 25,753.32

Cleared Balance 224,967.53

Register Balance as of 12/31/2024  224,867.53

Page 1 of 1




Tulare Public Cemetery District
Reconcilation Detail

#10950 Pre-Need Payment Plan Period Ending 12/31/24

Beginning Balance
Cleared Transactions
Deposits and Credits - 11 items

Total Deposits and Credits
Total Cleared Transactions

Type Date Amount Balance

199,214.21

11/26/2024 v 151.37 151.37
11/26/2024 vy 561.96 713.33
11/26/2024 v 1,804.73 2,518.06
12/02/2024 + 5,858.00 8,376.06
12/02/2024 v 6,093.80  14,469.95
12/17/2024 v 1,113.87  15,583.82
1211712024 v 1,200.00  16,783.82
1211712024 v 499200 21,775.82
12/20/2024 v 814.36  22,590.18
12/23/2024 y 1,405.10  23,995.28
12/31/2024 2 1,758.04  25753.32
25,753.32  25753.32

25,753.32  25,753.32

25,753.32 224,967.53

Cleared Balance
Register Balance as of 12/31/2024

25,7563.32 224,967.53




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT

Financial Statements />
& Required Supplementary lnforrgation
With Independent Auditors’ Repo ,/

For the Year E,nt{e\?;i,
June 30, 2024




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

Table of Contents
Page
Independent AUdItOrs’ REPOIT ... ..o e reer s er e crscr e ee e renescnmeenas /\» ................................... 1
Management's Discussion and ANAlYSis ... e rmeesimrerermrerisssmeras // ..................................... 3
Basic Financial Statements:
Government-wide Financial Statements: 0
Statement of Net Position...c.iiiiiin adianeadiemsesenmseesetbo e
Statement of ACHVITIES ... iiciicri e e s s Sy es b e e
Fund Financial Statements: Q\Q /\> \\\\
SEE1E ToTat =R oY= O SRR SRS R” SORNRS D, S S 10
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet tOJStatement of Net Positiof ......
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fufid Balances.......memeereeressrersenes
Reconciliation of the Statement Revenues Expendltures and Changes in Fund Balances —
Governmental Funds to the Statemento\w:tlwtles ST A 13
Notes to Financial Statements.......ceeevviececdois b e, L \\> ................................... 14
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Budgetary Comparison Schedule..............\. ............................................................................................. 31
Schedule of the Districts. Proportlonate Share of the Net Pension [B1F=1 01 1 RO 32
Schedule of the District’s P\ensmn(,Contnb'ﬁt?nesm .......... oM erneresosssessonssesnessssesnensasesesssssassasssassonseonns 33
Notes to 18 Redquired SupPlemertany IATOFMAHAN ..y dueem s ssssssssnsssssssessssssssssssssssssssssns 34
OTHER.NBDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS
Independent Auditors' Report Qn nternal*Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and OthePMatters Based ofiamMAudit of kinancial Statements Performed ih Accordance with
Govemmen?‘Audrtmg Standards§ ........................................................................................................ 35










Iﬁ Kevin Brejnak, CPA

A PO Box 891724 | Temecula, CA 92588
E: kevin@brejnakepa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
Tulare Public Cemetery District

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major
fund of the Tulare Public Cemetery District {District) as of and for the fiscal\year, ended June 30, 2024, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectivefy\c/omprisé the\District's basic financial
statements as listed In the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above,present fairly, in all mgteri@l respects, the
respective financial position of the govermnmental agti\?ftiegfand each major fund of the\Qistl@t as of June
30, 2024, and the respective changes in ﬁnancial\POéition thereof for\ the fiscal year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted\lnm\eL?d"States of America%

Basis for Opinion «

We conducted our audit in accordance w.ih\éuditing standards.generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to\fiianclalaudits containgd in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the\Un‘ited~St5fes.\0ur responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsib}[itiés for'the Audit of the\F‘J\n\éncial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of the\Districtand Yo-meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the relevanf ethicalrequirements :\'elating'tﬁ our atidit. We bg}jeve that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient.and-appropriate to provide a basis forqur audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is res‘ﬁ\ﬁ‘sit{le for the pre‘”B',ération andT(?rr presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting-qrinciples/ generally accepted inthe United States of America; this includes the
design, irgp[ementation,\qnd maintenance of*intggnal\:ontrol relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free m materi_al’misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financia) s a{ements. anagement is required io evaluate whether there are conditions or
e\i'ths considered in th@aggre\gatéthat\raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a
going.congern for twelve months beyondsthe financial statement date, including any currently known
: N . NN . AT

information t@may raise substantial doub@orﬂy thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are 0 obtain reasbnarble assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material'misstatement/whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonabletassuranceis a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore
is not a guarantee thai‘an\a/udig,c’énducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatément resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reascnable user based on the financial

statements.



In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Siandards, we:

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant {o the audit in order\to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but net for the purpose of expressmg an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Disfrict’s internal control. Accordingly, no sucﬁ opinlon is expressed.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and thefeasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate t \he overall presentation of the
financial statements,

s Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditlons or'events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the District's &bility’to continue as a\gomg concern for a
reasonable period of time. /

We are required to communicate with those charge wrth -governance regardlng, among olher\matters the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant aud|t~f' ndi gs, and certain.internal control related matters
that we Identified during the audit. \/

Required Supplementary Information &
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Gaovernmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinicnh or provide any assurance.

Other Re@qurr& by Government Auditing Standards

Indccordance with Gove\mmentAudrtmg Standards, we have also issued a separate report dated February
2023 on our consnderatlon of the Dls}nct's internal contrel over financial reporting and on our tests of

its compllance with certain prowsmns of Iaws regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other

matters. The purpose of that report is to descnbe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial

N

reporting and, compliance and the results of that testing, and not fo provide an opinion on the effectiveness

of the District’ s-internal control over fi f nancial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of

an audit performed imaccordance with Government Audifing Standards in considering the District's internal

A
control over fi nanc:a!.reportlpg/and,comphance

%@?@/ s

February _ , 2025




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) offers readers of the Tulare Public Cemetery District's
financial statements a narrative overview of the District's financial activities for the year ended June 30,
2024, This MD&A presents financial highlights, an overview of the accompanying financial statements, an
analysis of net position and results of operations, a curreni-to prior year.analysis, a discussion on
resfrictions, commitments and limitations, and a discussion of significant a’ctiwty invalving capital assets
and [ong-term debt. Please read in conjunction with the financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

 District's net position increased by approximately 3.7%-€ompared to the prior lscal year.
» The District experienced an increase in net posttion,of $163,119.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis serves as an introduction fo th Dlstrlct s ﬁnancual statements. The Bistrict’s
basic financial statements reflect the combined results of the Operatlngzand Capital Programs and Include
three components: (1) Statement of Net Position; (2) Statements of Révenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Position; and (3) Notes to the Finanmal Statéments.

\
The financial statements accompanying this MD&A presentthg net posmon -and results of operations during
the year ending June 30, 2024. These {i nanmal s‘tatements hﬁe\been prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting, which is sxmxlaptc’ﬁﬁé‘accountmg ba51s used /bi for-prof gentltles “Each financial statement is
identified and defined in thifs section and analyzed \ln\s}ubse uént-sections of this MD&A.

REQUIRED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS \

Statement of Net Position

The Statemﬁﬁ?ﬁf’Net Position presents infGrmation oirthe District’s assets, deferred outflows of resources,

liabilitied anddefen:ed lhﬂows of resources with the'differente between these items reported as net position.

Over'timesincreases” on@ecreases m\qet position may\s‘erve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
posmon/of the District is 1q1provmg or deteriorating. Assets exceed liabilities, resulting in a net position of
$4,630,766 as of June 30, 2024

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, andChanges in Net Position

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position present information showing how
the District’s net posﬂlon changed durlng the fiscal year. All of the years revenues and expenses are
accounted for |n\1Qe Statement/of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. This statement
measures the results_ofthe D:strlct A operations for the year and can be used to determine if the District
has successfully recovered"ail of“lts costs through user fees and other charges. Operating revenues and
expenses are related to the Disfrict's core activities {sale of internment rights and burial services). General
revenues and expenses are’ not directly related to the core activities of the District (e.g. interest income,
interest expense, property taxes). For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 net position increased by
$163,119.




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

REQUIRED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's most significant funds
— not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the District-{isesto keep track of specific

sources of funding and spending on particular programs. Some funds afe reqﬁired by State law and by

granter requirements. /
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND CONDENSED FINANCIAL INEORMATION
Analysis of Net Position

Table A-1: Condensed Statement of Net Position\

June 30, 2024, June 30,2023 Change
ASSETS N/ ~
Current assets $\3,342,551 $ ,2,857,536 $ 485,015
Non-current assets ™. 281,174 %\388,763 (107,589)
Total assets \4,62“3;?25\\ 4248299 377,426
DEFERRED OUTFLO \ 396,525 /\\\508,5‘1'7 {211,892}
v ~.
LIABIL!TIES\// \ <
Current Iiab\ﬂifie\g. 94,4:\9 58,546 35,873
Non-current Tiabilities L 20\,088_ 22,386 (2,298)
otal liabjlities m07> 80,932 33,575
~
DEFERRED INFLOWS 274,977 306,237 (31,260)
ET-POSITION
| ves{ment in capitahassets 710,958 807,800 (96,842)
Rest\ricted 2,315,812 2,118,250 197,562
Unrestricted 1,603,996 1,541,597 62,399
Total net position % 4,630,766 $ 4,467,647 $ 163,119

At the end of the fiscal year, the District shows a balance in its unrestricted net position of $1,630,996. The
restricted assets increased due to an increased balance in the endowment from charges and investment
earnings. Unrestricted assets increased which was due to net decreases in expenses associated with the
District's position related to its CalPERS pension plan.




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)
Analysis of Revenues and Expenses

Table A-2: Condensed Statements of Activities

June 30, 2024 June”30, 2023 Change

Program revenue $ 1,410,758 /1 3,1‘2 445 98,313
Expenses 1,589,545 , 2, 436 808 {847,263)

Net program expense (178 TIBy {1,124,363) \945 576
General revenues 41 906 372,510 {30, 604)

Change in net position 163 19 (75\"853) 914\972
Net position

Beginning of year AN 4,467,647 51219,500 (751,853)

End of year $ 4‘630‘766 $ 4,467,647 § 163,119

While the Statement of Net«Posﬂ:orrshows the chang m,f nancial posmkthe Statements of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes,in NetfPoslt@n prov:des an S ers to He nature and source of these changes. The
main factors in the changenn net posmon is due to mcreased programand general revenues, combined

with lower expenses,
—\2 Increase
June 30,2024 June 30, 2023 (Decrease)

Table A-3: Total Revenues

Progiam réventes 3 ~
Charges for sepvices $ 1,273,448 $ 1,197,647 $ 75,799
Endowment care fees 137,312 114,798 22,514
Total program rev;Jes 1,410,758 1,312,445 98,313
Ge neral‘r\ve nues:
Property taxes 239,311 222,049 17,262
Otherreve _t{e 27,859 93,330 {65,471)
Investment eamings 74,736 57,131 17,605
Total general revenues 341,906 372,510 {30,604)
Total revenues $ 1,752,664 $ 1,684,955 $ 67,709

Total revenue from all sources increased by 4.0%, or $67,709, from the prior year due mainly {o investment
earnings and gains in program revenue charges.




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)
Analysis of Revenues and Expenses

Table A-4: Total Expenses

C Increase
June 30, 2024 Juhe 302023 {(Decrease)
Expenses: N\

Salaries and employee benefits $ 847,804 1,702,700\$ (854,896)
Utilities 52,953 72,305 (19,352)
Services and supplies 5891’78, 549,430 40,356
Interest on long-term debt < 280 217 63
Depreciation 08,722 192,156 {13,434)

Total expenses $ 1,589,5\5\\"5/2,436,808 §  (847,263)

BN
Total expenses for the District's operations Ea\creased by $847,163, from the prior year due to recording
net pension expenses of $942,859 in prior\yea\r\clue‘\t}cnanges innthe~CalPERS investments and the
District's proportionate share which inflated salary, and Bensﬁt&costs. %

\

Net capital assets decreased by $98,722 from the prior year due to depreciation charges.

\

Table A-5: Capital Assets at{igrfEnd, Net-of Depreciation

% assefs:

Land

CAPITAL ASSETS

alance Balance
Jiine 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

$ 129,465 § 129,465

Depreciablg\ dssets 2,272,054 2,272,054
Accumulated d\epreciatibn (1,686,339) (1,587,617)
Total capital;assets, net $ 715,180 § 813,902

ANALYSIS OF INDIVIDUAL.DISTRICT FUNDS

General Operating Fund

Total budgeted expenditures for the fiscal year show expenditures exceeding revenues. The actual results
for the year show revenues exceeding expenditures by $260,597. Higher than anticipated revenues and
lower than projected expenditures for capital outlay led to an ending fund balance of $855,040.




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION {continued)
Analysis of Indlvidual District Funds

Endowment Care Fund
The Endowment Care Fund increased by $188,545 over the prior year. /The principal portion of this fund is
restricted and cannot be used for general operations. The increase’is dué to investment gains on the
principal portion and endowment fees charged for services.

FACTORS AFFECTING CURRENT FINANCIAL POSITIO

The District is heawly reliant on generating at-need a}pcﬂe-need sales fo help operationsx Any disruption
in the number of services performed during a given year\mll have a dramatic impact on theJevel of spending
the District can accommodate with spending down reserves.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is des:gned to prowde\r\Board of Trustees cltizens customers, taxpayers, and
creditors with a general overview of the Distr, {c\ts financss-and to demonstrate the District's accountability
for the funds it receives and the stewardship of\the facl[me?lt\owns and operates If you have questions
about this report or need additlonaldnformatlon\pl‘ease contact the-Tulare® P\qkyc Cemetery District at 800
E. Kern Avenue, Tulare, GA 93274, (559) 686-5544)




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2024

Govemnmental
Activities

ASSETS
Current assets: $/\

Cash and cash equivalents - 3,178,970

Accounts recievahle 141,361

Inventory 22,220
Non-current assets:

Net pension asset /\ 56\5,994

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 7153180
Total assets < 4,623,725
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCE
Defemed outflows of resources for pensic}ﬁ 396,525
LIABILITIES \
Accounts payable 94,419
Nen-current liahilities:

Due within one-year . 17,954

Due ij/mo’lf’e thar??)‘ne year 2,134
Tota{ﬁab{[i’ties 114,507
DEFERR{ED{I\\IFLO@S OF RESOURCE§-

E@ Tnfb\ws\gf‘?rm%@ 274,977

~~ NET-ROSITION

Net invest{nent in capital assets 710,958
Restricted for:
Nonexpendable 2,083,159
Expendable 232,653
restricted 1,603,996
Net position $ 4,630,766

The nofes to financial statements are an infegral part of this statement.




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Statement of Aclivities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

Govemmental
Activities

EXPENSES
Salaries and employee benefits $ 847,804
Utilities 52,953
Services and supplies 589,786
Depreciation 98,722
Interest on long-term debt /\ 280
Total expenses 1,589,545
PROGRAM REVENUES
Charges for cument services A 1,410,758
Net program revenues (expenses) / (178,787)
GENERAL REVENUES
Property taxes 239,311
Investment income 74,736
Other revenue 27,859
Total géneral reveriu 341,906
Cha'n;ge\in net positio 163,119

4,467,647

4,630,766

The notes to financial statements are an infegral part of this statement.



TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds
June 30, 2024

Permanent
Fund
Total
General Endowm'a'“ng Governmental
Fund Care Fund Funds
ASSETS /
Cash and cash equivalents $ 885,878 §° 2,293,022 § 3,178,970
Accounts receivable 141,361 </ \\ 141,361
Inventory 22,220\ < 22,220
Total assets 3 1.049/:159 $ 2,293,09;\$ 3,342 551
LIABILITIES /> \\
Accounts payable 3 94,419 § - $ 94,419
\ NS v
Total liabilties 94,419 - 94,419
FUND BALANCES \\ \>
Nonspendable -2{20 ,\060,439 2,083,159
Restricted P \232}653 232,653
Unassigned 9327320\ A 932,320
Total fund balaﬁ\ \955,040 2,293,092 3,248,132
Total liabilities and fund\Wes $ 1,049>‘59 $ 2203002 $ 3,342,551
The notes fo financial statements are an integral part of this statement. | 10




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT

Recoriciliation of the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet to the Statement of Nef
Position

June 30, 2024

Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 3,248,132

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of nenp@ition
are different because:

Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation, used in govemmeﬁtql activities
are not financial resources and therefore, are not reported as assets in
govemmental funds.

Cost of capital assels: 2,401,519
Accumulated depre\ciatign: (1,686,339)
Capital assets, netof depreciation/” 15,180

The assets and liabilities below are not due and payable ithe cirent period
and therefore are not reported in the ggverymental funds:

Deferred ou}ﬂows 0! resou{ces - pensiol 396,525
Deferred inflows,of resoufces- pensio (274,977)
eLpensmn Ilabllttylasse 565,924
{4,222)
{15,866)

Lease\payable .
/ Compiensilated absences
Total net position - ove@chviﬂes & $ 4,630,766

The notes fo financial statements are an integral part of this statement. | 11




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental
Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

Permanent
Fund

Total
General Eng,owm/',eﬁt Governmental

Fund Care Fund Funds

REVENUES

Property taxes $ 239,311 @/\ % 239,311
Charges for current services 1 ,273,4516> 137,342 1,410,758
Other revenues 27,859 - \ 27,859
Investment income 23,5603 51,233 74,736
Total revenues 15643119 ~ 188,545 \1,\7 52,664

EXPENDITURES

658,623
52,953

\/ O
589,786

Current:
Salaries and employee benefits 658,623
Utilities 52,853
Services and supplies 589,78
Debt service: > .
Principal 1,88{0/\
Interest 280 - 280

1,880
Total expenditures 1,303)522 - 1,303,622
Net change.in fund balancgs 260,5\9} 188,545 449,142
FUND,BALANCE
Balahces, July 1, 2023 694,443 2,104,547 2,798,990

Balances, June 30, 202 955,040 § 2293092 § 3248132

The notes to financial stalements are an Integral patt of this statement. | 12




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances — Governmental Funds fo the Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 449,142

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of activitig®are
different because:

Some expenses reported in the statement of acfivities do not require.the.use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reporied das expenditures.in
govemnmental funds. N

(189,599)
418

Net pension expense
Compensated absenCes

Govemmental funds report capital outlay as expenc&ure’g. howev@the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated.over their'estimated
useful lives as depreciation expense The difference betwesn capital outlay
expenditures and depreciation expense\fc}the period is;

N NSNS

Expenditures for capital cutlay

Depreciation éxﬁ‘ense % (98,722)
Net:\ \ /\\\) (08,722)

In govemmentalfunds/ repayments of long-term debt are reported-as

expenditures, GIQ thg\/ govemment—\}}ﬂdé statemer}ts, (rc?payments of long-term debt

are reported as reduction of liabilities. / Expenditures for repayment of the principal

portion of Iong-terrr?*d%were: 1,880
Change in net-position - governmem& 3 163,119

The notes to financial statements are an infegral part of this statement. | 13




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Organization

The Tulare Public Cemetery District was established August 1, 1927, under thé-State Cemetery District Act
of 1808 and as subsequently amended. It was later incorporated in the California Health and Safety code
of 1939. At the time of organization, the Tulare Public Cemetery Distri/ct‘fook,over the then existing Tulare
City Cemetery, which had been in operation for approximately fifty years. Thg District operates as a special
district under California Law and is subject to applicable sectiongof the-Health and Safety Code Section
9010. The District's Board of Trustees is appointed by the Tulare\@unty Board'of Supervisors.

Reporting Entity

The accounting policies of the District conform to accgunting-principles generally accepted in the United
States of America as applicable to governments and,t& geperal practice within California Special Districts.
The District accounts for its financial transactions inaccordance with the policies and procedures of the
State Controller's Office Division of Local Government Fiscal Affairs-Minimum Audit Requirements and
Reporting Guidelines for California Special Districts.

The preparation of these financial statem’érﬁ%‘reguires manageqlent«to make estimates and assumptions.
Those estimates and assumptions affé‘cE "the\reported amount§ \0( assels, liabilities, revenues, and
expenditures, as well as the disclosure of coﬁtingeQaSSQtS and [iabﬂities. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Management also determinies the dccounting principles\to be used in the preparation of
the financial statements.

A description of the significanitaccounting policies employed in’ﬁ?e\ preparation of these financial statements
follows: Accounting prfnci'p!és gene}ally\acceptea\in the“United States.of America require that these
financial statements’presént the accounts lof the District@nd any of its component units. Component units
are legally separaté‘*egtities of which the [f)istrict is consi“dgred to be financially accountable or otherwise
has a relationship, whic ié‘sgch that.the exclusion of th\e\ent\ity would cause the financial statements fo be
misleading. Blended component unifs are considered, in substance, part of the District's operations, so the
accounts-of these entities are t0'be combinad-with the‘dat?ﬂ@‘l the District. Component units, which do not
meet tHese requirements, are r,gpoﬁed in the financial statements as discrete units to emphasize their
. 5, L R wr .
separate;legal status. Hg.wev\er, the Disfrict has determined that it is not financially accountable for, nor has
any\'oth\er relationship wutl'{<1:y other organization, which would require its inclusion in these financial
statements.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government:wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net pasition and the statement of activities)
report information on_all of the nonfiduciary activities of the District. The effect of interfund activity has been
removed from tﬁes\e tatements. G/bvemmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental reve%gs @fe reported separately, compared to business-type aclivities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees arid chafges for support. The District currently has no business- type activities,

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identiffable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment
and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment.




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued)

Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reporied instead as general
revenues. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separafe columns in the fund financial
statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Sta emen{l}i’esentatron

The government-wide financial statements are reported using.the econemic resqurces measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorde’d w/l;ren garned and’ expenses are recorded at
the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the relatéd cash flows take\place Nonexchange
transactions, in which the District gives (or receives) y vafue without directly receiving (ongmng) equal value
in exchange, include property taxes, payments for se\rwces and donations. On an accruat baS|s revenue
from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year in which all ellgrbllltyfl%qurrements have® been\iatrst' ied.

e y
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using.the.current-financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of’E‘ccountrng Under\the modn" ed accrual basis of accounting,
fevenues are recognized when susceptrb{e\to Accrual (ie., when they are “meastrable and avallable™).
“Measurable” means the amount of the transactron tan be determined and “available” means collectible
within the current period. Revenues are con3|dered~to be»avallablt.g\mhen | they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay [labllltles of th\current pe iod..For this purpose, the District
considers all revenues avarlatife?t‘they are collected wrthrn/f 20 days~efter yearend, except for contracts for
services which are recognlz.ed,at the tlme the con\tract is s’fgnedﬁ Propeﬁy taXESIand investment income are
susceptible to accrua!.fExpendrtures are recorded when a Iiablllty is mcurreﬁ as under accrual accounting.
However, expendltures refated to compensated absences and claims afid judgments, are recorded only
when payment is de, Permanent funds account for assets for which the principal may not be spent.

The fund financial statementep{ovrde mforma ion.about the District's funds. The emphasis of fund financial

statements 1§ on maijor goverpmefital fufids;-each displayed in*a separate column.
The Dis?jcté@he@\lo{n\gmajoﬂm‘lemmental furids:

General Fund: This fund is usedta account for all financial resources of the District except those
required to be accounted forin another fund. Included are transactions for services, rents, property
taxesand interest. The general fundfbalance is available to the District for any purpose provided
it is'expended or transferred accordlng to the rules of the Health and Safety Code and by approval
of the'Board of Trustees. \

Endowmen Care Fund: Thrs fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for future
maintenance ogthe/ Cemetery at such time when all lots have been sold and there is no longer
revenue generated from such sales. The resources are derived from an endowment care fee
assessed on each ‘séle of a burlal rlght and earnings on these resources. The principal must be
preserved intact. Endowment Fund is in accordance with Section 9065(e) of the California Health
and Safety Code.

| 15




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 — DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statetnent Prese{ltatton (continued)
Revenue resuiting from exchange fransactions, in which each party gwes»*and receives essentially equal
value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes p[ace On a modified accrual basis,
revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measUrabIe and become available,
Available means that the resources will be collected within the currént fi scal‘year Generally, available is
defined as collectible within 60 days.

Nan-exchange transactions, in which the District receives va@thout directly giving*equal value in return,
include property taxes, certain grants, entilements, and donations. Revenue from roperty taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year in which the taxes are recewedf Revenue from certain | gr\ants entiflements,
and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in Which7all eligibility reqwrements have been satisfied.
Eligibility requirements include time and purpose reqmren?ents On a modifi ed accrual basis,révenue from
non-exchange transactions must also be available before.jt tan be recogmzed \>

Budgetary Data /\

Health and Safety Code Section 9070(a), states™that on or before August 30 of each year, the board of
trustees shall adopt a final budget, which shall\confbn%t'vo the accountmg and budgeting procedures for
special districts contained in Subchapter 3 (commencmg ith § 1031. 1) of\and Article 1 (commencing with
§ 1121) of Subchapter 4 of Division 2 of Title 20f the Callforgla“Code of | Regulatlons The beoard of trustees
may divide the annual budgemo\categorles\ ncluding,, but not hmlted tg mamtenance and operation,
employee compensation, /inte estand‘redemptlon for mdebtednes as~well ds reserves (for endowmenit
income fund, capital outfay,,pre need; contlngenmes snd unallocateJa general reserve).

The District follows these procedures in establl\shlng budgetary data reflected in the Required
Supplementary Information.— Budgetary Companson Schedule The annual budgst is a complete financial
plan for the ensuing budget\year and conSIsfS‘of‘an operatlng budget and a capital budget. The General
Fund is th e’éﬁTVFu d for Wth - amn‘“‘l‘budget :s‘!egally\/ ddopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted acoountln\ prmctples (GAAP). The Boardt\ht-gi considers the proposed budget at its regular
meetlﬁg, which is open to o'the publl

Prgpgrty Taxes n\ \

Property taxes attach as an enfo ceabledlen on property as of January 1, each year. Secured property

taxes are: Igvred on July 1 and a(e payab[e n two installments, on December 10 and April 10. The County
of Tulare Assessor's Office assesses all real and personal property within the County each year.

Property tax in Califoria is levied in/accordance with Article 13A of the State Constitution at one (1%) of
countywide assessed va[uatuons 'l/'he County of Tulare Treasurer's Oifice remits an undisclosed portion of
the one (1%) current and delfnquent property tax collections to the District throughout the year.

Pension

The District follows GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions which
became applicable as of July 2014. This statement requires accrual-based measurement and recognition
of the cost of pension benefits during the periods when employees render their services.

GASB 68 requires that the reported resulis must pertain to liability and asset information within certain
defined timeframes.

| 16




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 — DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Deposits and Investments AN\

The District's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from theff fateof acquisition. State statutes
mandate the District maintain substantially all of its cash in the Tulafe County Treasury. The County's
investment pool operates in accordance with appropriate state laws and«re@ulatlons The fair value of the
District’s position in the pool is not the same as the value of the pooled\shares The method used to
determine the value of participants' equity withdrawn is base on‘the bookwallie, amortized cost plus
accrued interest, muitiplied by the District's percentage it th date of such\withdrawal The County
Treasurer's investments, including U.S. Treasury and Agency ecuntles. are carried at falr value based on
current market prices. Bond antlmpatlon notes are carried-at fair value. CommerCIaI\Qaper is carried at
amortized cost. Investments in bankers' acceptances/ and nonpartl\mpatlng guaranteed investment
contracts are carried at cost. Participating guaranteed-investment contracts are carried at fair value based
on net realizable value.

The District has adopted GASB Statement it No. 72, Fair Valus: easurement and Application; investments
are measured at fair value on a recurring baSIs Recurrlng fair value~q1easurements are those that GASB
Statements require or permit in the statemen of\qah ogition at th end of each reporting period. Mutual
funds are carried at fafr value based on the funds are price. Local agency obligations are carried at fair
value based on the value of each part:mpatlng\dol ar.

Receivables and Allowance or~Doubtful Accounts

Contracts for serwces4nclude both p eneed and ‘at-néed,receivablés-to Jbe collected, The accounts are
evaluated on an anpdal bas:s to determlne those that: ay'not be collectable using the specific identification
method. The a[lowance\for accounts recelvable is based on those accounts that have been identified as
uncollectable that must be approvedfby the District's Board.of Trustees to be written-off. At June 30, 2024
there was no allowance fo®9ts receivable: s

Inventory

Inventory . ofgen\eal‘supphes and\fuel is valued at the lower of cost or market using the first-inffirst-out
me'fhodfT he costs of government fuqd-type inventories are recorded as expendiiures when consumed
rather than when purchased, As of June 30, 2024, the district had an inventory balance of $22,220.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported in the
government-\mde financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial,
individual cost of ore than $5,000 and an estimated useful life of five years or moare. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets
are recorded at estlmated\falr mar!(et value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to{r{vfalue of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives. Estimated
service lives for the District's classes of assets are as follows:

Description Estimated Lives
Buildings and Improvements 20-40 years
Machinery, Vehicles, and Equipment 10-15 years




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024 !

NOTE 1 — DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Interfund Balances and Transfers A\

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at year-end
are referred to as due toffrom other funds (i.e. current portion of interfund” Ioansj Interfund transfers occur
because the District receives charges for services through the special-feveniles funds and transfers these
funds to the general fund as expenditures are incurred or due to confractual requirements.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition {o assets, the statement of financial position will sofmetimes reporta separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement eleme/nt/represents the censumptlon of net position
that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized a$ an outflow of resourcés unitil then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometlme§ report a separate sectlon for
deferred inflow of resources. This separate financial staterent elemént represents an achIsit of net
position that applies to a future period and so will not be\recognlzed as“an inflow of resourcés-until that
time.

Currently, the District has deferred inﬂowslot?tﬂows of.resources for, its'pension plan.

Net Position
Net position is classified inio~thiee compongnts: net investment in>capital assets; restricted; and
unrestricted. These classifications are%f Ined as, foll\o/v\’.rls/

» Netinvestmentin capltal assets Thls component of net position conS|sts of capital assets, including
restricted caplta] assets net of accumulated depreciafion and reduced by the outstanding balances of
any bonds, mortgages, notes, or ather;] borrowings tha‘hare attributable to the acquisition, construction,
or improvement of those assets./ff there-are anif caqt unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the
portlo/nzof*thex\ebt attnbutable to th&unspentsproceeds are nect included in the calculation of net
m\’{‘estme LQcapital assets §ather thaf“po%of/\the debt is included in the same net position
component as the unspent p ceeds

. Restrlcted This co ponent of. net\posmon consists of constraints placed on net position use through

xtemal constraints tmpgsed by crgdltors {such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or
|aws T regulations of othel; gover ments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional
prowsn::ns or enabling leglslatlon

« Unrestricted net position \Thls component of net posmon consists of net position that does not meet
the definition of "net investment in capital assets" or "restricied"”.

i
When both restrictecj and u restn}cted resources are available for use, it is the District's policy to use
restricted resources ﬁrst.\the unrastricted resources as they are needed.




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Noftes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{continued}

Pension

The District follows GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Repo I!mg for Pensions as of Ju[y
1, 2014. This statement requires accrual-based measurement and recognit on of the cost of pension
benefits during the periods when employees render their services.

For purpeses of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outﬂowsét\d\lnﬂows of resources related to
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary: t\posmon of\the\TuIare Public Cemetery
District’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System CalPERS) plan YPI\an) and additions
to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have’bee determlned on the same~ba5|s as they are
reported by the CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions)
are recognized when currently due and payable i accordance with the benefit terms\ln\\restments are
reported at fair value. CalPERS audited financial statements are publrcly available reports that can be
obtained at CalPERS' website under Forms and Publications:

GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability-and asset information within certain
defined timeframes. For this report, the fo[[owrng timeframes are*used;

Valuation Date (VD) June 30, 202

Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2023

Measurement Period (MP) Iyv.1, 2022 to >Juhe 30, 2023
Fund Balances

The fund balance ior governmental fundsyis reported m classifications based on the extent to which the
government is bound to(Tconstramts on the spec ific cvpurposes for which amounts in those funds can
be spent. \

Nonspﬁﬁﬁﬁle Fund*balarice is “Teported_as nonspe dable when the resources cannot be spent
because.they‘a e tither inva nonspendabte Tarm.or legally or contractually required to be maintained
tntaot./ Resources-in h‘onspendah]e form include invehtories and prepaid assets,

Restrrcted Fund balance is reported as restricted when the constraints placed on the use of resources

are “either externally lmposed by\credltors grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other

gove\rﬁments or imposed® by law through constitutlonal provision or by enabling legislation.

. Committed The D[stnct's\hlghest decrsron-making level of autherity rests with the District's Board.
Fund balance Is reported as committed when the Board passes a resolution that places specified
constralnts\oﬁ\how resources rhay be used. The Beard can madify or rescind a commitment of
resources thror{gh assagefof a hew resolution.

« Assigned: Resources that are constrained by the District's intent to use them for a specific purpose,
but are neither restncted nor commitied, are reported as assigned fund balance. Intent may be
expressed by either the Board, committees (such as budgst or finance), or officials to which the Board
has delegated authority’”

= Unassigned: Unassigned fund balance represents fund balance that has not been restricted,

committed, or assigned and may be utilized by the District for any purpose.

When expenditures are incurred, and both restricted and unrestricted rescurces are available, it is the
District's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources in the order of committed,
assigned, and then unassigned, as they are needed.

| 19



TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - BDESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{continued)

Coempensated Absences

The liability for compensated absences reported in the government-widé statements consists of unpaid,
accurnulated annual and vacation leave balances. The liability ha,s’fieen/ calculated using the vesting
method, in which [eave amounts for both employees who currently are eligible to receive termination
payments and other employees who are expected to become eligible in-the future fo receive such payments
upon termination are included.

Compensated absences expected to be paid with e}(pendable available resourch\gre accrued and
recorded as liabilities and expenditures of the gene‘rfal fu:}d./ Amounts not expected to be,liquidated with
expendable avallable financial resources are reported in the government-wide financial statéments.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confarmity with gerlerailyfaccé ted accounting principles requires

management to make estimates and assuﬁpti&ns that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiés.at the date ofthefinancial statements and the reported

amounts of revenues and expenditures dlring the ?eported perioa:ﬁiﬂts could differ from those

o v




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 2 -~ CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments at June 30, 2024, are reported at fair value and consisted of the following:

Balance
June 30, 2024

Petly cash $ 500

Cash on hand 2,409

Deposits in financial institutions % 75,203

Extemal Investment Pool - Cash in Tulare County Treasury 3,100,858
\

Total casht and investments $ \3,17,;,8,970

California statutes authorize governments, tg invest idle or surplus’ funds in a variety of credit instruments
as provided for in the Califarnia Government\Gode Section 53600, Chapter 4 —~ Financial Affairs. The table
below identifies the investment types that are\authonzed for the Dtstnct by the California Government Code
{or the District's investment policy, where moré“ restnctwg) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and
concentration of credit risk, For the year ended Juine_30,2024, the Distrlct’s permissible investments

included the following instruments:
/_\ Maximum
Authorized Investment Type Maturity

U.s. Treasury Obhgattons 5 years
U.S. Agency Se\t\:unttes 5 years
Insured or Collateralized Certlflcate”S“OﬁDEpOSIt 5 years
State of Califomia \oca \Age cy ThvestmentFun NIA
"'6105}I,Gcwe en{ Investment Pools N/A
Money Market Funds N/A
Rassbook Savina‘s\aﬁ‘d Money Market Accounts N/A
Pooled%s

The D:stnct‘malntalns balances of cash in the County Treasury in each of its funds at June 30, 2024. The
County pools and\lnvests the cash These pooled funds are carried at cost which approximates fair value.
interest earned lsdep05|ted to partlcipatlng funds. Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all
funds in the pool.

Because the District's deposﬁs ‘are maintained in a recognized pooled investment fund under the care of a
third party’and the District's'share of the poal does not consist of specific, identifiable investment securities
owned by the District, no disclosure of the individual deposits and investments or related custodial credit
risk classifications is required.

In accordance with applicable state laws, the County Treasurer may invest in derivative securities with the
State of California. However, at June 30, 2024, the County Treasurer has represented that the Pooled
Investment Fund contained no derivatives or other investments with similar risk profiles.




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS {continued)

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits and Investments

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure ,the District will not be able to
recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are*ln the possession of an outside
party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that in the event of ; afailure of the counter party
(e.g. broker-dealer) io a transaction, the District will not be able to reSoverthe value of its investment or
collateral securities that are in the possession of another party.

Neither the California Government Code nor the County’s/investment pollcy contains legal or policy
requirements that would limit the District's exposure to custodlal credit risk for® deposnts or investments,
except that the California Government Code requires that a fi rfancial institution secure\deposlts made by
state or local government units by pledging securitiesn an-(ndivided collateral pool\held‘by a depository
regulated under state law. The market value of the'ﬁledged securities m the collateral peol must equal at
least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public\agenmes California law also allows financial
instifutions o secure District deposits by pledging first trust deed morfgage notes having a valq\ep_,-f 150%
of the secured public deposits.

Concentration of Credit Risk
The District's investment policy places hmlts on the amounts the Distnct may invest in any one issuer or

type of investment and as of June 30, 2024, an the® Dist ctwas in compliance with its investment policy.
Investment Valuation

The District categorizes the falr»value measurements of it§ investinents based on the hierarchy established
by generally acceptegaccountlng pnnmptes The falr\value’h[erarchy, which has three levels, is based on
the valuation inputs used {6 measure an assel's fair value*"LeveI 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets;~Leve| 2 inputs are}5|gn|t" cant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs. The District does’nothave any investrents that are measured using Level 3 inputs.

The following presentation re resentsjn\’iéstmew.lée\sjor investments held by the District as of June
30, 2024,

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

$\\- $ 3,100,858 § - $ 3,100,858

External Ifivestment Pool




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable consisted of the following at June 30, 2024:
Generw
Fund
Pre-need accounts 5 @2”392
Other receivables //(1 031)
Total $/ 141,361

NOTE 4 - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes allocated to the District forthe year ended June 30 2024 were as follows:

Current:
Secured 192 066
Unsecured 14, 322
Stipplemental 8 305

Tax relief subventlon 1 15

Prior:
Secur?d
Unsecured
A
Sypplementa
Redevelopment

Total

$ 239,311

NOTE'5 - EQUIPMENT LEASE'RAYABLE

The DIS@ Ieases equipment wuth a\hlstorlca[ cost and accumulated depreciation of $10,000 and $7,500,
respectively, under%a arrangements

Future lease payments {?\fﬁz ollows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2024-25 $ 2088 § 117§ 2,205
2025-26 2,134 26 2,160

$ 4222 % 143  § 4,365




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Noles to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 6 ~ CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEFRECIATION

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2024, was as follows:

Balance s///‘> Balance
July 1, 2023 Addition Retirements June 30, 2024

Capital assets not being depreciated: / <
Land $§ 129465 § =~ S - $ 129,465
Total capital assets not being depreciated 128,465 {4 N N - 129,465
Capital assets being depreciated: v .
Building & improvements 1,529,969 - - 1,529,869
Equipment 732,0,85 / - - 732,085
Leased equipment 10,000 - . 10,000
Total capital assets being depreclated 2,272,054" - =N\ 2,272,054
Accumulated depreciation for: \2
Building & improvements (1,169,799} {417406) - {1,211,205)
Equipment 412,818) (64,816) - (467,634)
Leased equipment (5,000)\ (2:500) - (7,500)
Total accumulated depreciation . ~_ 1,587,617) . (98,722) - (1,686,339)
Total capital assets being depreciated, ne \\ 684,437 98,722) - 585,715
Governmental activity capital assets, net \$\ 53'1\39“ (92}?2%85 - $ 715,180

Depreciation expense fo@rgtions amounte tof$9'!’3\,‘722\f9r he fiscal year ended June 30,
2024. The district has/fio esfimated Costs.remaining on curfent contracts,

NOTE 7 — NON-CURRENTRLIABILITIES

A schedule%ges in non-cufrentliabilities-for the iscal,year ended June 30, 2024, is shown below:

Balagce\ Balance Due Within
July 1, 2023\  Additions Decreases  June 30, 2024 One Year

Compensated absences $\\16,2M - $ 418 & 15866 & 15,866
N

| 24




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 8 — FUND BALANCE

At June 30, 2024, fund balances of the District's governmental funds were classified as follows:

Permanent
Fund
Endowment
General Ca\re
Fund /" Eun Total
Nonspendable: 4 \\
Endowment principal S - $ 2,060,439 § 2,060,439
Petty cash 50 / i 500
Inventory 22,220 - 22,220
Total Nonspendable 22,720\, \ 2,060,439 > 2,083.159%
Restricted: \\/
Cemetery maintenance AN - 232,653 232,653
Total Restricted N - 232,653 232,653
Unassigned: \\\\\ \\\
Unassigned balances 932,320 932,320
Total Unassugned 932,320 ™ ™~ - NN 932320

\/
Total 955\&0 $/2\293 092 3,248,132

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS CONTINGE CIES AND OTHER UNCERTAINTIES

The DlstﬁMVed in routme Iltlgmoqtsvbusmess and may be subject to claims and
Ilttgatlon from™outside parties. “Aftef. consultation wﬁhJegal counsel, management believes the ultimate
outcome,of such matters; ifany, will not materially affect its financial condition.

lnvestment\ securities are exposed to varlous risks such as interest rate, market and credit, The financial
marketsun recent months have shown hel ght /ged volatility and the markets are signifi cantly down. Due to
the level & uncertamty related tg changes In‘the value of investment securities, it is at least reasonably
possible that.g anges in the various risk factors, in the near term could materially affect investment
balances and\e amg ounts reported in the financial statements. Additionally, many mutual funds invest in
the securities of foreig compgnfes which involve special risks and considerations not typically associated
with investing in U. S\compames




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLAN

Plan Description, Benefits Provided and Employees Covered

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in.the Tulare Public Cemetery
District Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Plap; ad;pinistered by the California
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). The Plan consists of an individual rate plan within a
miscellaneous risk pool. Plan assets may be used to pay benef ts*for any employer rate plan of the
miscellaneous pools. Accordingly, rate plans within the miscellaneofls pools are not separate plans under
GASB Statement No. 68.

Individual employers may sponsor more than one rate plan in‘the mlsce[[aneous pools Tulare Public
Cemetery District sponsors two rate plans {Classic and’PEPRA) Benefit prowsmns under the Plan are
established by State statute and Tulare Public Cgmetew/Dlstnct resolution. CalPEBS\ ssues publicly
available reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisiopshassumptions
and membership information that can be found at CalPERS' website. %

Benefits Provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and?fsabnhty benefits, apnual,cost of living adjustments and death
benefits to plan members, who must be public émployees and benef iciaries. Benefits are based on years
of credited service, equal to one year of full tlme e Bloyment Members with five years of total service are
eligible to retire at age 55 with statutorlly reduced beneﬁ‘S\All members arg eligible for non-duty disability
benefits after 10 years of service. The death benef tis one\f “the fo!lowmg \ihe Basic Death Benefit, the
1957 Survivor Benefit, or tr}efOptlonal Setﬂement\z‘.ﬂ{f Death’Benef‘ t\The cost\/llwng adjustments for each
plan are applied as specifi e(j/by -the Public Emp]oyees Rétirerfent. L%

Contribution Desc ption

Seclion 20814(c) o‘fxthe‘fCaIlforma Public Emplayees™Retirement Law {PERL) requires that the employer
contribution rates for a[[ publlc employers/ be determined 'on an annual basis by the actuary and will be
effective on the July 1 followmg nofice o'f_“change in the‘rate. Funding contributions for the Plan are
determined annially_ on an clarial ba5|§*as~of June~30 by GalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is
the estlmated -amount necessary to fihance the costs.of bepsfits earned by employees during the year, with
an addltional amoun’oto ﬂnance\any‘unfunded accru&i‘hablllty The District is required to contribute the
diffgrence between the actuanally determlned rate and the contribution rate of employees. The District's
contribdtions to the Plan forxthé\y\ear énded June 30, 2024 were $41,896.

For the er surement period ended Juneg 30, 2022 (the measurement date), the active employee
contribution rate\ls 7.10 percent of annual pay, and the employer's contribution rate is 10.10 percent (7.68
percent for PEPRA) of annual payro[[ Employer contributions rates may change if plan contracts are
amended. It is the reSponSIblhty/of the employer to make necessary accounting adjustments to reflect the
impact due to any EmpToyer Paid Member Contributions or situations where members are paying a portion
of the employer contnbuhon CaIPERS collects employer contributions for the Plan as a percentage of
payroll for the normal cost portlon as noted in the rates above and as a dollar amount for contributions
toward the unfunded liability? The dollar amounts are billed on a manthly basis.




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 10 -~ PENSION PLAN (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
At June 30, 2024, the District reported a net pension (asset) liability of ($565,994) for its proportionate share
of the net pension liability. The net pension (asset) liability was measured as of Jhne 30, 2022, and the fotal
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determxped byzan actuarial valuation as of
June 30, 2022, rolled forward to June 30, 2023, using standard updatefprocedures The District’s propattion
of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Drstrlct’s’long-term share of contributions to the
pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all pammpa%s/actuanally determined.

At.June 30, 2024, the District's net pension liability as a proportlon of the miscellangous pool was (0.011%).
The District recognized pension expense of $189,599 forthe year ended June 30, 2024\

At June 30, 2024, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Defarred Inflows

_of Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsquent to measuremen date 42,281 $ -
Differences between actual and expected expenence 4,485 28,914
34,172

Changes in assumptlons \
Change in employer's p portioc\nd d:fference etween
3
the employer's cor}tn tlons and emp!oyer’s proportlo ate
share of contributions” \ 349,759 120,251
Net differences betweén projected and actual eamings‘on
plan investments

- 91,640

5 396,525 § 274,977

Then$42,281 reported as “deferred outflows of resources related to the pension resulting from District
contrfbutlons subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension

liability ifrthe* yﬁ:nded June 30,2024,

QOther amounts, re Qrtec[ as defelrredI outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Defemred
Year Ended Outflows/{Inflows)
June 30 of Resources
2025 3 103,296
2025 59,432
2027 (80,830)
2028 (2,631)




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 10 ~ PENSION PLAN (confinued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability
The June 30, 2020 total pension liability was based on the following actuarial.methods and assumptions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2022
Measurement Date June 30, 2023
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Nommal
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 6.90%
Inflation 2.30%
Projected Salary Increase Varies by Entry,Age and Serivce
Investment Rate of Retum 6.90% Net of‘Pensmn Investment and Admmlstratlve Expense
Mortality Derived using CaIPEQS Memberéhip, Date for all furids

Annuitant Mortal:ty\'\Table

(1) The mortality table used was devel\ pec based on CalPERS:specific data. The rates incorporate
Generational Mortality to capture ongomg\mo{talﬁ\wmprovement‘usmg 80% of Scale MP 2028 published
by the Society of Actuaries. For more details, please réfer to the 2024 experience study report that can be
found on the CalPERS website.

All other actuarial assumptlo@in the June 30, 2022 valua’uo were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the“fiscalye years 1997 to 201\1 mcludmg updates\toasalary increase, mortality, and
retirement rates. The Experiénce Study report can be obtairied at CalPERS" website at www. calpers.ca.gov
under Forms and Pgblications.

Change in Assumption

There were‘no_assumptton chapges iM’—@‘Effectwe wnt}) the June 30, 2021 valuation date (2022
measurement data\th\oaccountmg discount rate_wasreducéd from 7.15% to 6.90%. In determining the
long-term gxpect‘d rate retum, CaIPERS took into-accotint long-term market return expectations as well
as,the expected pension fund cash ﬂows Projected returns for all asset classes are estimated, combined
with, nsk estimates, and are used to project compound {(geometric) returns over the long term. The discount
rate sed to discount Ilab:htles was mfo‘r‘med by the long-term projected portfolio return. In addition,
demographic assumptiions and, the mﬂat:on rate assumption were changed in accordance with the 2021
CalPERS’ Experience Study an )Re\new of Actuariat Assumptions.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used\to measure the total pension liability for PERF C was 6.90%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine'the,discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at
the current member COI’Itl’lETJtIOI’I/ rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily
required rates, actuanallﬁ\determlned Based on those assumptions, the Plan's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore,
the long-term expacted rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments {o determine the total pension liability.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account long-term market return
expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Projected returns for all asset classes are
estimated and, combined with risk estimates, are used to project compound {geometric) returns over the
long term. The discount rate used to discount liabilities was informed by the long-term projected portfolic
return.

| 28




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Noftes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 10 — PENSION PLAN (continued)

The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.
These geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

LC{ng-Term
Targe Expected Real
X R
Asset Class Allocation / Rate.of Retum

Large Cap Equity
Small Cap Equity
Developed Intemational Equity
Emerging Markets Equity

Core Fixed

Short-Temm Govt!Crecjlfit.

Cash & Equaivalents
Private Equity
Private Credit

1
1

3%

1
3
10%
9%
%
4% -0.01

W

9
%

5.40%
8.17%
6.13%
8.17%
0.39%
4%.
-0.73%
10.83%
5.93%

5%

Infastructure 3% 6.30%
Value Add Real-Estate 5% 7.20%
Opperunistic-Real Estate 8.50%
3.80%
2.40%

Ri{sk’égﬁt?
ﬁge Funds
Tota

Sensitﬁi/—/;\\
Rele SN

TheMollowing presents the

TSI

of the District's.Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount

Distr{ct's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the

discouint rate of 6.90 percent as well as w‘h\ét\?he District's proportionate share of the net pension liability
would beénif itvwere calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.90%) or one

percentage\poiﬁt higher (7.90%)\tha‘n the current rate:

1 %’;)Decrease
‘Nét Pension Liability
Current Discount Rate

Net Pension Liability

1% Increase
Net Pension Liability

5.90%
$(263,987)

6.90%
$(565,994)

7.90%
$(814,572)

29




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 10 — PENSION PLAN (continued}

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the Plan's fiduciary net positions is available in the'separately issued CalPERS
financial report.

The District did not report a payable outstanding for contributions to thé pengion plan required for the year
ended June 30, 2024.

Subsequent Events /\
There were no subsequent events that would materially affett the'results presented in, this disclosure.

Amortization of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Under GASB 68, gams and losses related to changes in total pension IIabIIIty and fiduciary net position are
recogmzed in pension expense systematnca[ly over time\The first amgftized amounts are\recogmzed in
pension expense for the year the gain or loss occurs, The\remalnmgwamounts are categonzed as deferred
outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions*and are 16 be recognized in futuré pension
expense. The amortization period dtffer,§ d‘epe{tdlng on the source&f the gain or loss: Net differences
between projected and actual earnings on penslon plan |nvestments 5 year straxght-lme amortization) and
all other amounts (Straight-line amortlzatton overthe expected average emaining service lifetime (EARSL)
of all memnbers that are provided with benef ts (acttve, “inactive, and\re‘ttred) as of the beginning of the

measurement period).
NOTE 11 - SUBSEQUEN/TEVENTS
/ ee

Events subsequent'to Juqe 30, 2024 have been eva uafed through February __, 2025, the date at which
the District's audited ftnanc:lal statements were available to be issued. No events requmng disclosure have
occurred through this date

| 30




Required Supplementary Inf&mation

N

N




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule — General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget /ﬂ\\ctual {Negative)
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 225,000 $ 2254000 $ 239,311 % 14,311
Charges for curent services 1,055,000 1, 055/00 \2\73 446 218,446
Other revenues 28,100 28 100 2?’ 859 (241)
Investment income 7,000 //\7 000 23 503 16,503
Total revenues 1.315.100/ /4! 5,100 1,564,1 1;\ 249,019
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Salaries and employee benefits 852,250 852,250 858,623 193,627
Utilities 75,000 75 00 52,953 22,047
Services and supplies \541 805 541 805 589,786 {47,981)
Capital outlay _ 1‘5\000\‘50 000\ - 150,000
Debt service 2,160 {2,160}
Total expenditures 1,619, 055/ 17679 055 %03 522 315,533
OTHER FINANCIQG SOURCES/USES \ <
Operating transfers.n 60,0004 60,000 - {60,000)
Net changeTinm{und balances (243,855) \(243 955) 260,597 504,552
FyNDEALANCE
Balanges, July 1, 2023 694,443 694,443 694,443
Balances,™une 30, 2024 \$\450.488 $ 450,488 § 955,040
See notes to the required supplementary information. | K



TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Proportion of the Net Pension Liability -0.011% -0.053% -0.050% -0.010% 0.020% -0.020% -0.010% -0.020% -0.020%
Propaortionate Share of the Net Pension Liability _ {565.994) (574,861) (1,005000) (585,000) (SDZ,OOUﬁSQB,OOO) {504,000) (605,000} {475,000}
Covered Payroll 446,472 508,609 410,000 259,000 2450{)/249.000 281,000 251,000 318,000
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability /\\
as a Percentage of Covarad Payroll -126.8%  -112.8% 245.1%  -229.7% _ ~247.7% 240.2% _ -179.4% -241.0% -149.4%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of /\\/
the Total Pansion Liability 123.0% 143.2% 166.0% 131:10% 133.0% 132.0%.'  131.0% 138.0% 133.0%

See notes fo the required supplementary information. | 32




TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Schedule of District’s Pension Contributions
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 20186
Contractually Required Cantribution
(Actuarially Determined) $ 42,281 $ 41,896 % 35442 § 26,874 § 18,130 0,156 §$ 15,346 § 17583 § 18,779
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially /
Determined Contributions {42,281} {41,896) {35,442) {26,874} {185130) (20,155) {15,345) (17,583) (18,779)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 5 - 5§ - $ - L AN A $ - 3 - 3 -

A NS ONCN

Covered Payroll $446,472 $509,608 _$505,000 $410 IJDG\ $259,000 $243,000  $249,000 $281,000 $251,000
Confributions as a Percentage of Payroll 9.47% 8.22% 7.0% 8 8% 7.0% 3“/\ 6.2% 6.3% 7.5%

o

See notes o the required supplementary information. | 32



TULARE PUBLIC CEMETERY DISTRICT
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

NOTES TO SCHEDULE

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

This schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 34 as required supplementary information (RSI) for the
General Fund and for each major special revenue fund that has a [egally adopted annual budget. The
budgetary comparison schedule presents both (a) the original and (b) ;he final appropnated budgets for the
reporting period as well as (c) actual inflows, outflows, and balances. stated on the District’s budgetary
basis. A separate column to report the variance between the ihal budget and actual amounts is also
presented, although not required,

Excess of Expenditures Gver Appropriations ﬁ

At June 30, 2024, the District had excess of expen itures over apprapriations in individdal major funds
presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule were incurred was fol[ews

Appropnatlons Category Amount

Current: \ \ /; 081

Services and.supplies

Debt semce\\\\' 2\’[ 60

Schedule of the D:strlct's:Proportlonate Share of the Nét Pension L:ability)
This schedule presents ln'formatlon on he Dlstnct's proportlonate sh\\ef thé net pensian liability (NPL),
and the plans’ fi dumarf net position. [n the future, “as data’become avallab e, ten years of information will

be presented, g
Schedule of District Contri utlons \

This schedlle prese presents mfor ation on- the District's requ|red contribution, the amounts actually contributed,
and ar f excess” 0r~dgf‘ clency related to the reqmred conmbutlon In the future, as data become available,
ten,years,cf 1nformat:on{llxbe presented.

/




Other Independent Auditﬂ%Report
AN

>




|_1'-g Kevin Brejnak, CPA

A: PO Box 891724 | Temecula, CA 92589
E: kevin@brejnakcpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees
Tulare Public Cemetery District

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards’g enerally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audlts"éontamed in Governmer?txAudftmg Standards
issued by the Comptro[ler General of the United States the financial statements\of* the governmental
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remalnlng fund information of Tulare Pt;\llc Ce metery District
as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statemgnts which
collectively comprise Tulare Public Cemetery District’ aSlC financial“statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated February __, 2025. \)
Internal Control Over Financial Reportmg

In planning and performing our audit of the ﬁnanmal statementS\\we\consmered Tulare Public Cemetery
District’s internal control over financial reportmg (mte\r\na] cgntrol) fo de\t‘er ine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purp\ose of expressing our oplnlo s an the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an oplnlen.\on\the effectiveness of theJu ulare Public Cemetery District's

internal control. Accordlngly. we do_not express\an opinion n the effectweness of the Tulare Public
Cemetery District's mty-tat control; /

A deficiency in intersial control exists when the deS|gn\ r operatlon of a control does not allow management
or employees, inthe normal course of performlng their ass:gned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstaternents on a tlmely\basm A material weakness ]s a\deficiency, or a combinaticn of deficiencies, in
intemal control_such that\there is.4 reasonable~possibility that a material misstatement of the District's
financial ﬁt’enﬁts\wﬂl not be“f)revented orxdete\fed\qn_d)corrected on a timely basis. A significant
defi c:/ency is-adefi cnency,, or a combmatlon of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
matefial wéakness, yetdmportan enough o merit attention by those charged with governance,

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
sectlon\and was not deSlgned to |dentity\all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses ot sfgnificant defi c:enmes Giveri these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies't inin I\ternal control thatwe consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that “havéwnot been identifi ed

35




Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tulare Public Cemetery District's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intgrnal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of a/n"'éud/i _performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's intemjal control-and.compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

%@Z@/ 7

February __, 2025

36




To the Board of Trustees
Tulare Public Cemetery District
Tulare, California

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of Tulare Public Cemetery District for
the year ending June 30, 2024, we considered its Internal control structure in order to determine our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic financial statements and not to provide
assurance on the internal control structure.

However, durlng our audit we noted matters that are an opportunity for strengthemng internal contrcls and
operating efficiency. The fallowing items represent conditions noted by bur aufllt that we consider important
enough to bring to your attention. This letter does not affect our répo dated January __, 2025, on the
financial statements of Tulare Public Cemetery District. </

Observation: As of the time of our audit, the plstrlct;dld not have an accoun\tmg manual that
memorializes its policies and procedures related 1d'its firiancial operations. Developed internally, the
accounting manual will contain district-specifi ofﬁccountmg information for the entlty to follow. The
accounting manual works as a guideline for personnel and as a trafnlng manual for hew employees.
The manual will enhance its internal control structurs b?‘: cludlr}g sorgeone with the appropnate skills,
knowledge, and expertise to assist in the financial closing procedures. N

Recommendation: An accounting manual\contams th\accountmg policies and procedures of a
governmental entity. The District shc}uld\mo :th its external CRA to review and create a district-
specific procedures manual for its financial peratlons

Observation: The Dlz;lct‘cntena for chargiqg r\mn—resndent fees should yot be walvered. Excusing
a established and req yee may be percelved \a/e,a glfmf pubhc:funds

Recommendatlon eview established criteria for.charging non-résident fees. The District should
seek advice from colinsel.

Observation: The District does not‘have.a_set fee schedule evaluation timeframe. Reviewing the

schedule'"*bf\fgeslcharges/ Ie,/ﬂmpoﬁan?\fo alighing community expectations for the
semﬁes]manu@qce output of tHe Districw\’

Recommendatlon \Establlsh a set fee schedule evaluation timeframe. It is critical that the District
valuate fees at regular, m‘tervals as itensures that revenues can keap up with the escalating costs of

mateﬁalslsemces The Dts\tnct Mmustevaluate its cost structure and align it with the service .

expectations of the communi

We will reviewthe>status of the current year comment during our next audit engagement.

%@Z@/ C?A-Ll/

January __, 2025



